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Chairman’s Statement ¢ FFEHE

=
Sowing the Seeds for Success 'H"‘
| am pleased to report that 2007 was a pivotal year for our Company. During
the year, we critically assessed our existing businesses, commenced the
rationalization of some of our Group’s activities, and established the necessary
foundation for transforming our Company into a more focused and economically
vibrant investment holding flagship. The year was marked by a number of
pioneering, strategic investments in the agro-conservation and bio-energy
sectors. Not only do these sectors hold significant commercial potential for us,
but our unique public-private partnership (“PPP") business model also ensures
that such commercial interests are in harmony with the environmental and
socio-economic concerns of the countries in which we conduct our business
activities. Such harmony is crucial to ensuring that the success we aim to
achieve is sustainable.
. ~ " Mr. Tse Michael Nam ¥ L&
& T R EHF Chairman &
RAMRAER  RNARE_ZE+LFLERTHR —F - ERBEEFEANRBIG T SREEDR  WHEHAD EKEHHE
TEH REEUERA—FREABREOCNLEDNNREESE BT THEANER - SEREAEFERERERED
REREEEEH T ZHARBEMNRIKERE - WERETEEERENBELRRE N MEEBEN[ AL EESEILEE
X ERIFTEANEENEEERENBERNIRR  NEEHHESLERZINET - SENEKLEEBZRRESTK -
B ThRE D B E A BRI NG A o
Name Change EREEERE
In line with our transformation, we have changed the name of our AEGEBEXKEH EHEELHEARLBHIRI&ZE
Company to “Green Global Resources Limited” (‘@B ER BRRERERQF] - MEBEFZTRAANEBSELMA
BBRAT"). Our new name epitomizes our Company’s focus and [A : [ @ BFAEBMEIRIBTRELIGE  [RIE]RB
direction: “Green” emphasizes our dedication to environmental SEEAEEMKIABEZRREE REE2RBEFEF
protection and conservation; “Global” reflects our commitment BlIREBHIKRE  [EJR] B FE B H B A ATIRIE KA
to actively engage in businesses in a variety of global locations, B AERKBELRERN  ERSAAEVBEN LHE
continuing on our existing investments in China and Laos; and Z/T#& WARAARRRERKEEEE -
“Resources” evidences our vision to be a leading producer of
regenerative or renewable resources that will propagate exciting
and sustainable financial growth and shareholder value for our
Company and shareholders.
2
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Chairman’s Statement o EE#R%

Board and Management Changes

During the year, the Company also experienced substantial
changes in the composition of its board of directors (the
“Board”) and senior management. | joined the Board as
Chairman in February 2007 and brought to the Company my
extensive experience in the agro-economic sector, having held
key management positions with several agricultural companies
as well as being a technical advisor to various organizations
and governmental bureaus, including Hawaiian Agronomic
(International) Inc., the Thai Trade Commission, and projects
funded by multinational organizations such as the Asian
Development Bank ("ADB").

Mr. Puongpun Sananikone, who joined the Board as an
Independent Non-Executive director in July 2007 and who
subsequently became an Executive Director, is also a member
of the East-West Center Board of Governors, an education and
research organization established by the United States Congress
in 1960 to strengthen relations and understanding among the
peoples and nations of Asia, the Pacific, and the United States.
Mr. Sananikone, has a wealth of experience in the fields of agro-
conservation and socio-economic development. He is a well known
and respected figure in the Asian economic development and
agricultural sectors, particularly in the Greater Mekong Sub-region
("GMS”) (Laos, Cambodia, Vietnam, Thailand, Myanmar, and the
Yunnan Province of China), having assisted the ADB, the World
Bank, the United States Agency for International Development
(USAID), and other organizations and institutions to finance and
establish socio-economic and rural development projects.

The Board also has three new Independent Non-Executive
Directors and several new key management staff. The reconstituted
Board and management are focused on transforming the Group
into a highly profitable agro-conservation and bio-energy
conglomerate which is also committed to the environment, good
corporate governance practices, and transparency.
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Unique Business Model

Under the new Board's direction, the Company has instituted
an exciting new business model which seeks to form mutually
desirable public-private partnerships (“PPP”) between the
Company and local governments, institutions, civic groups, and
private entrepreneurs. Our PPP business model provides a bridge
between the private and the public sectors by assisting the
private sector to penetrate into highly restrictive sectors of the
economy while enabling social and academic institutions and local
governments to fulfill their institutional or governmental policies in
relation to land protection and conservation of natural resources
for future generations. We are delighted to report a number of
“break-through” agro-conservation and bio-energy investments
for the Company in Inner Mongolia, Hainan, and Laos utilizing this
PPP business model.

Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Huge Value Development Limited
(to be renamed as Green Global Licorice China Limited), made
the Group’s first investment in China’s agro-conservation sector
in 2007. This investment by Green Global Licorice China Limited
gives the company access to land use rights for the cultivation of
licorice on 1,000,000 Chinese mu (~67,000 hectares) of land in
Inner Mongolia. During 2007, the company successfully completed
the planting of 8,000 Chinese mu (~533 hectares) of licorice in
Inner Mongolia.

Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Quest Asia Development Limited
(to be renamed “Green Global Salix China Limited”), made further
investment in China’s agro-conservation sector in 2007. This
investment by Green Global Salix Limited provides the Company
with access to land use rights for the cultivation of 800,000
Chinese mu (~53,000 hectares) of licorice and 2,200,000 Chinese
mu (~147,000 hectares) of salix in Inner Mongolia. In October
2007, the company commenced the planting of 200,000 mu
(~13,300 hectares) of salix.
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BEEBENX

RAEHFNESTEEET  BERT —EHHeERA
REDSREZHEA  #E REBEERALACEE
BEANIAMEAE] - LR BBRELAKE
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REMNBABABTRE EMEEALEEE - BEE
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Outlook for 2008 and beyond

Our plantation of licorice and salix in Inner Mongolia during
2007 was a testament to our commitment to agro-conservation.
Our efforts were recognized by the municipal government of
Inner Mongolia when in March 2008, we were invited to enter
into a Cooperation Agreement with Inner Mongolia Tian Lan
Technology Sand Control Estate Limited, which in turn is a party
to an agreement with the Municipal Government of Hang Jin Qi
Inner Mongolia to execute a project for the planting of 5,000,000
Chinese mu (~333,000 hectares) of salix over the next five years
and 200,000 Chinese mu (~13,300 hectares) of licorice over the
next three years (the “5532 Project”).

In December 2007, the Company established Hainan Venture
Zhengke Bioenergy Development Company Limited (8F %S 1E
BAEYRERARAR]) (“Hainan Venture™), a joint venture 90%
owned by the Company and 10% owned by a Chinese partner.
Hainan Venture was established to conduct jatropha curcas-based
bio-energy activities in Hainan. The seeds of jatropha curcas trees
have a high level of oil content, which is widely believed to be
one of the most economical and practical raw materials for the
sustained production of environmentally friendly bio-diesel. Hainan
was chosen as the location for this important bio-energy project
because of its particular suitability for growing jatropha curcas.
Hainan Venture has completed the establishment of a 150 Chinese
mu (~10 hectares) nursery to grow jatropha curcas saplings.
Hainan Venture expects to commence selling these saplings in
the second quarter of 2008 and to expand the size of the nursery
during 2008.

In March 2008, Hainan Venture entered into a Cooperation
Agreement with Hainan Oriental Lincheng Bioenergy Development
Limited (the “Hainan Partner”), pursuant to which (a) Hainan
Venture will sell jatropha curcas saplings grown in its Hainan
nursery to the Hainan Partner for planting in an area of 1,300,000
Chinese mu (~86,000 hectares) of land in Hainan Island, and (b)
the Hainan Partner will sell to Hainan Venture all qualified seeds
harvested from such jatropha curcas saplings over the next 30
years. This cooperation will ensure that we have a reliable market
for the jatropha curcas saplings grown in our Hainan nursery, that
those saplings will be properly cultivated into seed producing
trees, and that we will have a guaranteed future supply of high
quality seeds from those trees.
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In December 2007, the Group extended its bio-energy business
activities from China to Laos through a new joint venture, Lao
Agro-Promotion Limited (“Lao-Agro”). Lao-Agro is an 80% owned
subsidiary of the Company which was established to conduct
jatropha curcas-based bio-energy business activities in Laos.
The 20% minority interest in Lao-Agro is held by a combination of
Charoen Phattana Group, a Laotian business enterprise, and the
Lao Disabled People Association. In March 2008, our Company
gained great publicity when Lao-Agro entered into a cooperation
agreement with the Lao National Authority for Science and
Technology to establish three commercially-based bio-energy
research and development and training centers in Laos.

The world is becoming ever more environmentally conscious and
there is an unprecedented surge in interest in agro-conservation
and the production of renewable and regenerative energy sources.
These new and emerging businesses are filled with opportunities
and challenges. We believe that our Company’s focus on and
investments in agro-conservation and bio-energy businesses and
projects will generate exciting and sustainable financial growth
and shareholder value for our Company and Shareholders for many
years to come.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | wish to extend our sincere appreciation
to all our shareholders for their continued support, as well as to
thank and congratulate our colleagues for their hard work and
dedication towards realizing our new corporate vision. We look
forward to reaping success from the seeds we are sowing.

Mr. Tse Michael Nam
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21st April 2008
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Management Discussion & Analysis » S BsfimE 2

Financial performance

The Group reported a turnover of HK$72,252,000 in 2007,
representing an increase of 23% compared with HK$58,740,000
recorded in 2006. This growth in turnover was largely attributable
to increases in the sale of IT hardware during the year. During
only approximately nine months of operations in 2007, the agro-
conservation sector contributed management services income of
approximately HK$7,467,000 to the Group. In addition, the agro-
conservation and the bio-energy sectors contributed biological
asset gains amounting to HK$11,255,000 and operating profits of
HK$16,508,000.

Gross profit for the Group overall increased by 16% to
HK$14,706,000 in 2007 (2006: HK$12,671,000) as a result of
increases in revenues from the sales of IT hardware. Gross profit
margin however, declined slightly by 1% to 20% mainly due to
decreased gross profit margins on IT hardware sales.

The Group recorded a turnaround profit from operations of
HK$6,565,000 as compared to a loss of HK$8,408,000 in 2006
due to a gain of HK$21,844,000 from the disposal of available-
for-sale investments, an increase in other operating income
from the provision of management and consultancy services of
HK$15,467,000 and biological asset gains of HK$11,255,000
contributed by the new agro-conservation and bio-energy
businesses.

The Group’s loss before taxation in 2007 increased by 210% to
HK$36,048,000 from HK$11,633,000 in 2006 mainly as a result of
the impairment of goodwill of HK$40,771,000 in relation to Acacia
(as defined below) and the Grand Panorama Group (as defined
below). The impairment losses were made for the Grand Panorama
Group following the disposal of the Grand Panorama Group after
the close of the 2007 financial year. The decision to dispose of
Grand Panorama Group and to impair the carrying amount of the
goodwill from acquisition of Acacia was made by the Board after
taking into consideration various factors, including the current
and future business prospects and financial situation of these two
companies, the current slowdown in the property agency market
in China, the stringent austerity measures that have been imposed
by the Chinese government, and the future capital requirements of
these two companies.
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The remaining businesses of systems integration, software
solutions, IT management and real estate related services
recorded an operating loss of HK$2,246,000.

Accordingly, the Board considers that it is in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders to focus the Company’'s
efforts and resources on the agro-conservation and bio-energy
businesses, which the Board and management believe to hold
substantial potential for sustainable financial growth, thus
increasing shareholder value for our Company and shareholders.

Loss per share for 2007 was HK4 cents, compared with HK 2 cents
per share in 2006.

Final dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31st December 2007 (2006: Nil).

Review of core businesses

During 2007, the Board and the Company’s management critically
assessed the Company’s existing businesses, commenced
the rationalization of some of the Company’s activities, and
established the necessary foundation for a more focused and
economically vibrant future. The year was marked by a number of
pioneering, strategic investments in the agro-conservation and bio-
energy sectors, which offer excellent potential for financial growth
and increased shareholder value, while furthering the Company’s
commitment to the environment, socio-economic development,
and corporate responsibility. This strategic focus on the agro-
conservation and bio-energy businesses underlies the change
of the Company’s name to “Green Global Resources Limited”, as
explained in the Chairman’s Statement. In spite of the relatively
short time of the Company’'s operations in these businesses
during 2007, the Group’s new agro-conservation and bio-energy
businesses have made significant progress.

Agro-conservation and bio-energy

Agro-Conservation

During 2007, the Group acquired two companies Green Global
Licorice China Limited (“Green Global Licorice”) and Quest Asia
Development Limited (to be renamed Green Global Salix China
Limited) (“Green Global Salix”), which conduct agro-conservation
businesses in Inner Mongolia.
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Management Discussion & Analysis » S BsfimE 2

Green Global Licorice

Green Global Licorice, which was acquired in March 2007,
provides management and consultancy services to Inner Mongolia
Tian Lan Technology Sand Control Estate Limited (“Tian Lan") for
the cultivation of licorice in an area of approximately 1,000,000
Chinese mu (~67,000 hectares) of grassland in 752 f8 B#niR5E
(Yi Ke Zhao Meng Hang Jin Qi) in the Inner Mongolia Autonomous
Region of China.

Licorice is a native perennial plant in certain regions in China,
particularly the Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region, and the
Xinjiang, Gansu, Qinghai, Shanxi, Ningxia, Shaanxi, Hebei, Jilin
and Heilongjian Provinces. The most favorable species of licorice
in China is found mainly in the Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region,
the area in which Green Global Licorice operates.

The root of the licorice plant provides an important substance
used in Chinese herbal medicine and is also widely used as raw
material for a diverse range of products, including food, candies,
cosmetics, and health products. Licorice roots also have other
applications in the non-medical and imperishable sectors, for
example, in the production of fire prevention and construction
products.

The supply of licorice roots in the PRC has been under pressure in
recent years due to rising demand. It is believed that the resulting
market shortage will drive up prices for licorice roots in the coming
years. The Board and the Company’s management believe that the
market for licorice roots is substantial and will continue to grow in
China and elsewhere.

& AR RN I v

Green Global Licorice

EER-_ZTZT+F = AKEGreen Global Licorice ' &
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Part of Green Global Licorice's 8,000 Chinese mu plantation in Inner Mongolia.
Green Global Licoricefi 3 A 5 & 98,000 @A TE 18 15 H i — #515 ©
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Ecologically, the licorice plant is highly effective in preventing soil
erosion and the resulting spread of the desert because licorice
roots penetrate deep into the soil and hold the soil layers together.
Illegal farming and extraction of licorice have contributed to
increasing desertification in Inner Mongolia. Local and national
government entities have long endeavored to eradicate the
desertification problem and strongly support the private sector’s
involvement in land management and conservation efforts. Through
Green Global Licorice, the Company employs its unique PPP
business model to assist the relevant governmental authorities in
these anti-desertification efforts.

In Inner Mongolia, licorice is usually planted during spring to
autumn when weather and soil conditions are most suitable for
planting. It normally takes three years of growth before licorice
roots can be harvested. Older licorice roots are generally of higher
value.

Since its acquisition by the Company, Green Global Licorice has
successfully completed the plantation of 8,000 Chinese mu (~533
hectares) of licorice. The timing and quantity of licorice roots to
be harvested annually is in accordance to a prescribed schedule
in order to achieve a balance between the soil preservation and
commercial objectives.

Licorice roots
HER

Licorice saplings used for planting.
EEEANHER -

Green Global Salix

Green Global Salix, which was acquired in October 2007,
provides management and consultancy services to Tian Lan for
the cultivation of salix psammophila in an area of approximately
2,200,000 Chinese mu (~147,000 hectares) in Inner Mongolia.

Salix, also known as sand willow, is an indigenous shrub which is
predominantly found in China’s Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region
and Shaanxi, Gansu, and Xinjiang Provinces. Salix is commonly
planted in vast sandy areas to combat desertification by providing
a wind shield to hold and block moving sand.
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Licorice saplings ready to be planted at Green Global
Licorice’s plantation site in Inner Mongolia.
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Salix — approximately 1 month after plantation.

D - RAERN—

In addition to its anti-desertification properties, salix has other
valuable and commercial uses. Salix has historically been used as
cheap wood fuel. In recent years, salix has more commonly been
used as raw material for fiber board and paper pulp for packaging
materials. Other uses for salix are also being commercialized,
including its use as a source for bio-fuel generated power plants.

The Company’'s Board and management believe that this
combination of important commercial uses and the increasing
commitment of resources by the Chinese Government to
combating desertification will ensure that salix will become an even
more important renewable and regenerative resource in China that
will be in high demand in the coming years.

During 2007, Green Global Salix successfully planted 200,000
Chinese mu (~13,300 hectares) of salix in Inner Mongolia.

For the year ended 2007, the agro-conservation businesses
generated income of approximately HK$7,467,000 from the
provision of management services for the cultivation of licorice. In
addition, biological asset gains from the cultivation of licorice and
salix during the year amounted to HK$7,690,000. The amount was
determined by Greater China Appraisal Limited (“Greater China”),
an independent professional valuer, based on the fair value of
licorice and salix less estimated point-of-sale costs with reference
to the most recent market transaction prices. During only nine
months of operation, the operating profit from this business sector
amounted to HK$12,703,000.

Bio-energy
In light of the worldwide shortage of energy, coupled with the rising
interest in environmentally friendly and renewable or regenerative

fuel resources, the Company's Board and management believe
that a strong demand for alternative energy resources such as
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bio-diesel will exist for the foreseeable future. The Board and
management believe that bio-energy businesses will complement
the Company’s agro-conservation businesses and generate
substantial and sustainable profits for the Company for years to
come. During 2007, the Board explored a number of interesting
opportunities in the regenerative and renewable resources sector.
Unlike fossil fuels such as coal and natural gas that will soon be
exhausted or significantly depleted, regenerative and renewable
energy resources may be replenished or reproduced from natural
resources such as solar, wind, geothermal, water, and biomass, or
regenerated or renewed through mass cultivation or production.

Increased use of renewable and regenerative energy resources
can help achieve the enormous commercial goal of satisfying
the world’s increasing energy demands and the critical societal
goals of substantially reducing air, water, and thermal pollution,
excessive water consumption, and adverse land usage.

Hainan Venture’s 150 Chinese mu jatropha nursery.

/8RR B 150 AT R A A -

Bio-diesel is currently one of the most suitable regenerative and
renewable energy resources. This highly desirable alternative fuel
source provides a renewable and cleaner source of energy which
is relatively affordable.

The key challenge faced in bio-diesel development is the
availability of a raw material that is commercially viable,
environmentally friendly to produce, and socially acceptable.
Apart from being more cost-effective than other conventional raw
materials such as palm oil or rapeseed oil, the optimal raw material
for bio-diesel production should not be derived from human or
animal food sources, and should not be cultivated at the expense
of deforestation or cultivated on land that could otherwise be used
for the cultivation of human or animal food sources. It is widely
believed that such an optimal raw material can be found in the oil
derived from the seeds of jatropha curcas.
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Hainan Venture

In December 2007, the Company established Hainan Venture
Zhengke Bioenergy Development Company Limited (8@ 7%= S ER
£ YRR AR AT (“Hainan Venture™). Hainan Venture is a joint
venture, 90% owned by the Company and 10% owned by 1t &7
ERIBIE AR AR (Beijing Oriental Zhengke Technology Company
Limited), a PRC company principally engaged in investments in,
and operation of businesses related to, research and technology.
Hainan Venture was established to conduct jatropha curcas-based
bio-energy activities in Hainan.

The seeds of jatropha curcas (also known as Barbados nut or
Physic nut) have a high level of oil content which is widely believed
to be one of the most economical and practical raw materials for
the sustained production of environmentally friendly bio-diesel.
Because the jatropha plant is not a food source and can be grown
in less than optimal soil and climatic conditions, jatropha complies
with the Chinese Government’s alternative energy policies, which
prohibit alternative energy activities that use food sources as raw
material or that occupy farmlands that can be used for growing
food sources.

Hainan was chosen as the location for this important bio-energy
project because of its particular suitability for growing jatropha.
Jatropha thrives in warm weather conditions and requires
substantial rainfall. Hainan provides the ideal combination of these
two essential conditions.

With the technological assistance of specialists from the Sichuan
University College of Life Sciences, Hainan Venture has completed
the establishment of a 150 Chinese mu (~10 hectare) nursery
to grow jatropha curcas saplings. Hainan Venture expects to
commence selling these saplings in the second quarter of 2008
and to expand the size of the nursery during 2008.

3-month old jatropha saplings at Hainan Venture’s
nursery, ready to be transplanted.
BEREEBEANZEAKROMERE B HBHE -

Young jatropha fruit
R Y ERE
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Matured jatropha fruit ready to be harvested.
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Lao-Agro

In December 2007, the Group extended its bio-energy business
activities from China to Laos through a new joint venture, Lao
Agro-Promotion Limited (“Lao-Agro”). Lao-Agro is an 80% owned
subsidiary of the Company which was established to conduct
jatropha-based bio-energy business activities in Laos. The 20%
minority interest in Lao-Agro is held by Charoen Phattana Group,
a Laotian business enterprise, and the Lao Disabled People
Association.

Similar to Hainan, the climate and agronomy of Laos are highly
suitable for the cultivation of jatropha curcas. Moreover, Laos offers
sufficient inexpensive land and farm labor to support the mass
cultivation of jatropha. The Company’'s presence in Laos through
Lao-Agro will provide a strong foundation for developing and
commercializing the jatropha-based bio-energy sector in Laos and
for similar activities in other Greater Mekong Sub-region (“GMS")
countries.

Because the Company's bio-energy activities were not commenced
until late in 2007, the bio-energy sector did not generate any
revenue for the year ended 2007. However, the biological asset
gains from the cultivation of jatropha saplings during the year
amounted to HK$3,565,000. The biological assets gain was
determined by Greater China based on the fair value of jatropha
saplings less estimated point-of-sale costs with reference to the
most recent market transaction prices.

Jatropha specialist from Sichuan University College of Life Sciences (left) visiting Laos.

mNASERHEBEMNMEASER (BL) HEBER -
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Lao-Agro
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Experimental jatropha nursery in Laos.
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Non-agricultural businesses

Systems Integration, Software solutions, IT management and
support: TopAsia Group ( “TopAsia”)

In 2007, TopAsia’s provision of ATM management services to the
banking and financial sectors in China remained a main revenue
contributor to the Company.

Buoyed by economic prosperity in China, TopAsia enjoyed steady
business growth during 2007. TopAsia entered into a number of
new ATM after-sales services contracts with state-owned and
commercial banks, including 15 municipal branches of China
Merchants Bank, 35 branches of Bank of Communications, and
branches of Bank of China and the Postal Bureau. To support
this wider customer base, TopAsia bolstered its infrastructure
by adding 7 service centers countrywide, for a total of 38, and
expanding its engineering team with the addition of another 30

technicians.

Sales of ATM products also increased in 2007, with gains
mainly attributable to sizeable new contracts for more than 100
installations in the Zhejiang Postal Bureau and Bank of Shanghai.
Sales of data storage facilities also increased slightly during 2007,
with supply and service contracts signed with Shanghai Securities
Depository and Clearing Corporation, Shanghai Post, Industrial
Bank, and the Guangzhou Municipal Government.

In spite of increasing revenues, the level of TopAsia’s direct and
operating costs remain high for 2007, and the division generated
operating losses amounting to HK$1,330,000 for the year. In
light of current global economic concerns, particularly in the
financial services industry in which TopAsia operates, and China’s
macroeconomic situation of tight money supply and high inflation,
TopAsia will face a challenging business environment in 2008.
We will continue to monitor and assess TopAsia’s activities and
prospects.

Real estate related technology services: Acacia Asia
Partners Ltd ( “Acacia”)

Acacia is a provider of technical and outsourcing services to
retail real estate agencies in the PRC, primarily in Shanghai.
The operating landscape for Acacia’s business has become
increasingly difficult, with the mainland Chinese Government’'s
imposition of austerity measures and higher operating
requirements for brokerages. In view of the plunging number
of transactions and negative prospects, the Group is seriously
assessing the future viability of Acacia.
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Acacia generated HK$442,000 in revenues and HK$5,799,000 in
operating losses during 2007.

Real estate consultancy services: Grand Panorama Limited
and its subsidiary ( “Grand Panorama Group”)

Grand
Panorama competes with large-scale brokers with more

As a real estate and mortgage broker in Shanghai,

comprehensive infrastructure and networks across Shanghai and
China as a whole. Along with Acacia, this segment will remain
constrained by stringent Government policies. As discussed above,
the Company disposed of its entire interest in Grand Panorama
Group in March 2008.

Grand Panorama Group generated HK$5,617,000 in revenues and
HK$4,715,000 in operating profits during 2007.

Outlook

The Company’s progress in 2007 in the agro-conservation sector
through Green Global Licorice and Green Global Salix has
been significant. With the cooperation of Tian Lan and the Inner
Mongolia government in the 5532 project, Green Global Licorice
and Green Global Salix will continue to plant licorice and salix
in Inner Mongolia to achieve the Company’s goal to cultivate
200,000 Chinese mu (~13,300 hectares) of licorice over the next
3 years and 5,000,000 Chinese mu (~333,000 hectares) of salix
over the next 5 years. Going forward, the Company’s Board and
management believe that Green Global Licorice and Green Global
Salix will make significant contributions to the revenue and profits
of the Company.

Management Discussion & Analysis ¢ EEEImE DT
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Another area of Green Global Licorice’s 8,000 Chinese mu plantation in Inner Mongolia.
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Various grades of licorice roots ranging from 3-5 years.
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Green Global Licorice’'s new plantation in Inner Mongolia.
Green Global Licoricefz NSt ) 2 # H EiEHES o

Through the 5532 project with Tian Lan, the Company has EBEXEAENSS2IIE AFENSEEERE A
engendered the trust and support of the local government for E#EETHEAL S - KM EEMEFNEER I -
its agro-conservation efforts in Inner Mongolia. The Board and AREZ@REEBREATNRAENBEERNTTEE
management believe that this trust in and support for the Company REHEREEEMZE -

will greatly facilitate our current and future agro-conservation

efforts in Inner Mongolia.

The Company established important foundations for its bio-energy 2 AR ZZEE+EEH I/@ﬁé &%}L?ﬂ:/\ BERE%
businesses in Hainan and Laos in 2007. Hainan Venture, which HKHBEFTEBEM - SHEEE ST LFRT — @
established its jatropha curcas sapling nursery in 2007, intends to i 40 & & B - Wi 2 8 & lTEjii1 5008k (491002
expand its nursery to 1,500 Chinese mu (~100 hectares), a scale tE) CUHERABREANEMEHEAMEEE  ER K
which will ensure an adequate supply of jatropha saplings to plant CBMEER _EENGF-AEEEEFMNE EDEE
large areas of land. In fulfillment of this purpose, in March 2008,

Hainan Venture entered into a Cooperation Agreement with /&R R

HMEEMEERIEE AR AR (Hainan Oriental Linchang Bioenergy

Development Limited) (the “Hainan Partner”), pursuant to which

17

Green Global Salix’s 200,000 Chinese mu Salix plantation in Inner Mongolia. Matured salix; ready to be harvested.
Green Global Salixfiz 7 A 5 & #7200,000 M & 1815 BERAZEAIKRE D -
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the parties agreed that Hainan Venture will sell jatropha curcas
saplings from its nursery to the Hainan Partner for planting in an
area of approximately 1,300,000 Chinese mu (~86,000 hectares)
Chinese mu in Hainan and the Hainan Partner will sell all qualified
seeds harvested from such trees to the Hainan Venture for the next
30 years. The Board and management believe that this cooperation
will serve as a strong foundation for our jatropha-based bio-energy
business in Hainan, by ensuring that we have a reliable market
for the jatropha saplings grown in our Hainan nursery, that those
saplings will be properly cultivated into seed producing trees, and
that we will have a guaranteed future supply of high quality seeds
from those trees.
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The signing ceremony between Lao-Agro and NAST.
Lao-Agrofi ZMBIR BB RITHEZER

In December 2007, the Company entered into the Lao-Agro
joint venture to conduct jatropha-based bio-energy business
activities in Laos, and in March 2008 Lao-Agro entered into a
Cooperation Agreement with the Lao National Authority for Science
and Technology (“NAST") to establish three commercially-based
research and development and training centers for the production
of commercially and environmentally sustainable jatropha-based
bio-energy as an alternative and renewable energy source. This
new business venture in Laos marks the Company’s first initiative
into the GMS. Management believes that the Lao-Agro joint venture
and Lao-Agro's cooperation with NAST will help Lao-Agro to
develop optimal species of jatropha curcas for commercializing
jatropha production in Laos, and help to establish Lao-Agro as a
highly recognized and dependable jatropha producer throughout
the GMS.
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With support from the governments in each of the countries in
which the Company has invested,
believe that our agro-conservation and bio-energy business
activities will make great strides in 2008 and the years to come.
Going forward, the Company intends to continue to focus its efforts
and resources towards realizing the tremendous potential of these

the Board and management

agro-conservation and bio-energy businesses to create maximum
profits and value for the Company and its shareholders.

The Company, through its new Board and management, has
demonstrated its commitment to identifying and capitalizing on
new opportunities to achieve substantial and sustainable financial
growth for the Company and to maximize shareholder value.
Through a combination of rationalization and repositioning of
existing businesses and strategic and coordinated investments
in new growth businesses in 2007, we have established a firm
platform for the Company to achieve exciting and sustained future
financial success, while fulfilling the Company’s commitments to
socio-economic development, good corporate governance and
transparency, and responsible citizenship in the growing “green
global” community.

Liquidity and financial resources

Net Assets

At 31st December 2007, the Group recorded total assets of
approximately HK$520,749,000, which were financed by liabilities
of approximately HK$195,399,000 and equity of approximately
HK$325,350,000. The Group’s net asset value as at 31st
December 2007 increased by 90% to 325,350,000 as compared to
approximately HK$170,992,000 as at 31st December 2006.

GREEN GLORAL RESOURCES LIMITED
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April 2008 - New Company name and logo.
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Liquidity

The Group had total cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$72,939,000 as at 31st December 2007 (2006: HK$72,254,000).
The net cash balance as at 31st December 2007 was also
HK$72,939,000 (2006: approximately HK$72,236,000),
Group does not have any bank borrowings (2006: approximately
HK$18,000).

as the

As at 31st December 2007, the current ratio was 1.58 (2006: 2.79)
and gearing ratio was 0.24 (2006: Nil) which was defined as the
Group's convertible loan notes over its equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company.

Charges on assets

At 31st December 2007, no fixed deposits were pledged to banks
to secure banking facilities (2006: HK$15,624,000).

Treasury policies

The Group generally finances its operations with internally
generated resources, proceeds from the disposal of its available-
for-sale-investments and from equity fund raising activities. All
financing methods, including equity, debt and other means,
will be considered so long as such methods are beneficial to
shareholders as a whole. Subsidiaries in the PRC use internally
generated resources to finance their working capital requirements.
Bank deposits are mainly in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.

Contingent liabilities and capital commitments

The Group had no material contingent liability in respect of
possible future long service payments to employees under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.

The Group had capital commitments which were authorised but not
contracted for totaling approximately HK$36,035,000 in respect of
additional capital injections in subsidiaries as at 31st December
2007 (2006: Nil).
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Management Discussion & Analysis » S BsfimE 2

Foreign exchange exposure

For the year ended 2007, the Group mainly earns revenue in
Renminbi and incurs costs in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi.
Although, the Group currently does not have any foreign currency
hedging policies, it manages its currency exposure by ensuring
that the revenue earned in Renminbi are used to pay for Renminbi
denominated costs. Funds raised from financing activities which
are mainly in Hong Kong Dollars are used to pay for Hong Kong
Dollar expenses and Hong Kong Dollar costs of acquisitions.

The directors do not expect the appreciation of the Renminbi
against the Hong Kong Dollars to have any material adverse effect
on the operation of the Group.

Employee and remuneration policies

As at 31st December 2007, the Group employed approximately 263
full time staff in the Mainland China and Hong Kong. The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance, working
experience and the prevailing market price. Other employee
benefits include mandatory provident fund, insurance and medical
coverage, training programs and share option scheme.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tse Michael Nam, aged 50, is
the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Mr. Tse has
had over 20 years of experience
in the agricultural, cultivation and
farming industry. Mr. Tse has held
| key management positions in several
agricultural companies as well as
being a technical advisor to various
organizations and governmental

bureaus such as Hawaiian Agronomic
Mr. Tse Michael Nam #®@#%% (International) Inc., the Thai Trade
Commission and projects funded by multinational organizations
such as the Asian Development Bank (“ADB”). Mr. Tse holds
a Bachelor of Science degree in Biological Science & Marine
Biology from the University of California, Berkeley and a
Master of Business Administration degree from the University
of San Francisco. Mr. Tse is responsible for the Group’'s overall
performance and strategic direction.
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Mr. Puongpun Sananikone, aged
63, is an Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Sananikone is an
experienced international development
economist and business executive
whose career has spanned many
countries throughout the Asia-
Pacific region. Mr. Sananikone has
been professionally active in China
and Southeast Asia for over two
decades. Mr. Sananikone is currently
president of Pacific Management
Resources (“PacMar, Inc.”) (1987-
present), a Hawaiian-based multinational consulting group
assisting international funding agencies and private sector clients
in project identification, planning and development. Under his
guidance, PacMar Inc. completed a large number of projects
in the agriculture and rural development sectors for the ADB,
the World Bank, and the United States Agency for International
Development (USAID) in various Asian countries, and major
public and private sector enterprises in China and other Asia-
Pacific nations. Mr. Sananikone, a recipient of the 2003 University
of Hawaii Distinguished Alumni Award, holds a Bachelor or Arts
in Economics from the University of Hawaii, a Master Of Arts in
Economics from the University of Colorado, and has completed
specialised post-graduate training in macro and natural resource
economics at Colorado State University.

Mr. Puongpun Sananikone

Puongpun Sananikone %t 4%

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John, aged 46,
is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Lim has
extensive private equity investment
experience, having managed several
private equity funds covering primarily
the ASEAN region since 1991.
Prior to that, he worked in Dowell
Schlumberger in the United Kingdom
and Arthur Andersen & Co., London.
Mr. Lim graduated with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Economics from the London
School of Economics and Political

1

Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John
Lim Yew Kong, John%t 4%

Science in the United Kingdom. He is a qualified chartered
accountant from the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales.
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Mr. Albert Theodore Powers, aged
55, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Powers
is the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Allied Pacific Group, a
diversified investment and advisory
group based in Hong Kong. Mr.
Powers has over 30 years of business
and legal experience in a wide range
of corporate, commercial, hospitality,
gaming and real estate activities. Mr.
Powers has particular experience in
investment transactions in Greater

Mr. Albert Theodore Powers

Albert Theodore Powers’t 4

China and Asia, where he has resided and worked for the past
25 years. Prior to joining the Allied Pacific Group, Mr. Powers
practiced law in New York City, San Francisco and Hong Kong and
was the Hong Kong senior and managing partner for several of
the world’s leading law firms, including Shearman & Sterling and
Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher. Mr. Powers is licensed to practice law in
New York, California, Colorado, and Hong Kong. Mr. Powers holds
a Bachelors of Arts degree from the University of Denver; a Master
of Business Administration degree from Imperial College London;
a Juris Doctor degree from the University of Pennsylvania Law
School; and a Master of Laws in Taxation degree from the New
York University Law School.

Mr. Pang Seng Tuong, aged 41,
is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company. Mr.
Pang has more than 10 years of
experience in investment banking and
investments. Mr. Pang is the founder
and managing partner of Pinetree
Capital Partners Pte Ltd, a private
equity fund management company.
Prior to setting up Pinetree Capital
Partners in mid-2006, Mr. Pang co-
founded Westcomb Financial Group
Ltd in 2000, one of the first boutique
investment banks in Singapore, which is listed on the Singapore

Mr. Pang Seng Tuong

Pang Seng Tuongt 4%

Stock Exchange. Mr. Pang holds a Bachelor of Science degree
(Highest Honours) in Astro & Aeronautical Engineering from the
University of lllinois at Urbana-Champaign under a scholarship
from a Singapore Government-linked company and subsequently
under a double scholarship from the University, he obtained a
Master of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering. He was the
winner of the prestigious Sword-of-Honour as well as the Letter of
Commendation, and held the rank of Major while in military service
in Singapore.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chu Lik Chung, aged 56, has the overall management
responsibility for the Group’s banking and financial peripheral
product offering and servicing network in China. Mr. Chu is a
graduate of the Eastern China Normal University, Shanghai with a
diploma in Chinese language and literature. Mr Chu has more than
15 years of IT experience and joined the Group in June 2000.

Mr. Ophad Phissamay, aged 39, is the Group’'s Country
Representative in Laos, and is specifically responsible for directing
and managing the Group’s Laos agricultural operation. Mr.
Phissamay has over 10 years of experience in directing, managing
and administering projects and operations for large organizations
in Laos, including Lao Airlines and the Department of Civil Aviation
of Lao PDR. Mr. Phissamay holds a Master of Science degree in
Aeronautical Operations from the National School of Civil Aviation,
Toulouse, France, and a Master of Science degree in teaching
Mathematics and Computer Science from Lenin Pedagogical
University, Moscow, Russia.

Ms. Ng Bee Ching, Jenna, aged 40, is the Group's qualified
accountant and company secretary. She is a member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia.
Ms. Ng has been in the accounting and corporate finance arena
for more than 15 years. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Ng held
various management positions with companies in Singapore, Hong
Kong and Australia.
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The Board of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company is pleased
to present their report and the audited financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31st December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. During
the year, the Group was principally involved in the distribution
of information technology products, the provision of computer
technology services and the carrying on of property agency
business in China. During the year, the Company also embarked
on the new businesses of agro-conservation and the cultivation of
raw materials for the bio-energy industry. Details of the material
activities of the Group’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note
35 to the financial statements.

As discussed in the Chairman’s Statement and the Management
Discussion and Analysis, the Company re-positioned itself during
2007 to become more focused on agro-conservation and bio-
energy businesses. No other significant changes in the nature of
the Group’s principal activities occurred during 2007.

RESULTS

The Group's results for the year ended 31st December 2007 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 49 to 148.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published consolidated
results and the assets, liabilities and minority interests of the
Group, prepared on the basis set out in the notes to the financial
statements. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.
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Report of the Directors « EE&HE

RESULTS EX
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
—ETEF | —TITRF —ZETREFE —TEMNFE —TE=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#ET FHET FAET FAT FHET
TURNOVER EER
Continuing operations SEIEEET 72,252 58,740 128,884 237,841 261,692
Discontinuing operations ERIEER - - 96,224 - -
72,252 58,740 225,108 237,841 261,692
LOSS BEFORE TAX EXEATN 5
Continuing operations SEICEET (36,048) (11,633) (12,406) (29,755) (15,734)
Discontinuing operations ERIEER - - (27,110) - -
(36,048) (11,633) (39,516) (29,755) (15,734)
TAX BIE (1,209) 1,642 1,673 (175) 1,974
LOSS BEFORE MINORITY Rt DBBRE
INTERESTS WEEER (37,257) (9,991) (37,843) (29,930) (13,760)
MINORITY INTERESTS % CE L (422) - 2,171 3,077 (1,622)
NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE B R AL S
TO SHAREHOLDERS 18 (37,679) (9,991) (35,672) (26,853) (15,382)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS EE -BEBERVEBREES
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
“ETEF | —TITRF —“ZETRFE —TTMFE —“TE=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ExT FHET FAET FAT FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE 398,136 48,880 106,388 86,924 90,257
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE 122,613 190,519 96,480 238,526 281,019
CURRENT LIABILIITES FEBaE (77,732) (68,407) (47,349)  (189,819)  (205,835)
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEETE 44,881 122,112 49,131 48,707 75,184
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEEZER
CURRENT LIABILITIES REaE 443,017 170,992 155,519 135,631 165,441
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEaE (117,667) - (210) (487) (737)
MINORITY INTERESTS 0% CEE (2,555) - - (4,454) (7,531)
322,795 170,992 155,309 130,690 157,173
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FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Company and of
the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital and
share options during the year, together with the reasons for such
movements, are set out in notes 26 and 29 respectively, to the
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group during the year are set out in note 34(c) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 52, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31st December 2007, the Company had no retained profits
available for cash distribution or distribution in specie. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company’s contributed
surplus of HK$39,431,000 is undistributable. The Company’s
share premium account, in the amount of HK$475,727,000 at 31st
December 2007, may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, the jurisdiction in which the
Company is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company's listed securities during
the year.
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Report of the Directors « EE&HE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2007, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for
approximately 50% of the Group’s total sales for the year.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
48% of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to 15% of the Group’s
total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors, any of their associates, or any of the
substantial shareholders of the Company (which are disclosed to
the Directors) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during 2007 and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tse Michael Nam (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as a Chairman on 12th February 2007)
(appointed as a Chief Executive Officer on 1st March 2007)

Mr. Puongpun Sananikone (Executive Director)
(appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 1st July 2007)
(appointed as an Executive Director on 1st March 2008)

Mr. Chan Tze Ngon
(resigned 1st March 2008)

(Former Chairman)

Mr. Tang Kin Hung
(resigned 1st March 2007)

(Former Deputy Chairman)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John
(appointed 12th February 2007)

Mr. Albert Theodore Powers
(appointed 1st March 2008)

Mr. Pang Seng Tuong
(appointed 1st March 2008)

Mr. Tai Benedict
(resigned 1st March 2008)

Mr. Fu Yan Yan
(resigned 30th June 2007)

Ms. Wang Xi Ling
(resigned 30th June 2007)

In accordance with Bye-Law 111(A) of the Company’s Bye-Laws
and the Code (the “Code”) on Corporate Governance Practices
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. In
accordance with Bye-law 115, Mr. Albert Theodore Powers and Mr.
Pang Seng Tuong will retire from their offices at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. Being eligible, each of Mr. Lim Yew Kong,
John, Mr. Albert Theodore Powers and Mr. Pang Seng Tuong will
offer himself for re-election as an independent non-executive
Director.

DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the current Directors and of the senior
management of the Group (the “Management”) are set out in
pages 24 to 27 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material beneficial interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.
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Report of the Directors « EE&HE

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER'S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

EERTHABRKRG HERO K

B 2EERKXR

At 31st December 2007, the interests and short positions of the R-ZZ+E+-"A=+—H AQRREZEERTHAH
Directors and Chief Executive Officer of the Company in the RAATSNEEEZEZE (TERLEARBEERM (&5 K
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its  HEIE &1 ]) EXVEL) 2% - HEBKRO RESS - A
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the ZARQAIIREESNIEEIFEISIEAFE 2 ELMAD
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the §f SR I T AR ESETELST HHEESR ([12
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section  YESFRI) EHMEARQ R MBI T2 ERZ AR T ¢
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”),
were as follows:
(i) Long position in the shares (i) B zFa
Approximate
percentage of issued
share capital as at
No. of 31st December 2007
Name of Nature of shares H=2BtF
Director interest held Position +ZA=+—-H2
EEHE ERMtE RO B BE BITRABNED L
Mr. Tse Michael Nam Beneficial owner 50,000,000 Long 4.83%
A& BEmEEA A
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(i)

Long position in the underlying shares

Report of the Directors « EEE#H&E

(ii) HERR® ZFE

Approximate
percentage of issued
share capital as at

No. of 31st December 2007

Name of Nature of underlying H-BELE

Director interest shares Position +=ZA=+—-H%2

EEgE ERtE EERDEE BE BITRABENE D

Mr. Tse Michael Nam Beneficial owner 996,000 Long 0.10%

HEFELEA BEm#EBA (Note 1) FE

(Hiat1)
Mr. Puongpun Sananikone Beneficial owner 600,000 Long 0.06%
Puongpun Sananikone4t 4 EmEAA (Note 2) HE

(H1az2)
Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John Beneficial owner 600,000 Long 0.06%
Lim Yew Kong, John%t 4 EmEAA (Note 3) HE

(H1:£3)

Notes: et -

1. Mr. Tse Michael Nam, an Executive Director, held share 1. RITEFHEFEEREARABEBRE  ®E
options of the Company entitling him to subscribe for 1 DA R BE (B 3 A A% 19 0.6678 7T 3R B8996,000 A% ik
996,000 shares at a subscription price of HK$0.66 per e
Share.

2. Mr. Puongpun Sananikone, an Executive Director, held 2. #1717 # EPuongpun Sananikonest £ #H A AR
share options of the Company entitling him to subscribe AR BEEURBESRR7N.66/E T
for 600,000 shares at a subscription price of HK$0.66 per 2 B£600,0000% i1 ©
Share.

3. Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John, an Independent Non-Executive 3. B FEHITEELIM Yew Kong, Johnsk4#FAE
Director, held share options of the Company entitling him ARRAERE  HEEUREESREK%H0.36
to subscribe for 600,000 shares at a subscription price of 78 7T R B600,000 % AR 19 ©
HK$0.36 per Share.

In addition to the above, as at 31st December 2007, certain RZZZLFE+A=+—H0 BRLlEHN &

Directors have non-beneficial personal equity interests in (RS NGIE 3 ﬁ?/\%‘lzﬁm ETESERER

certain subsidiaries held for the benefit of the Company AFBEETHB AR ZFERBEARNESZ -

solely for the purpose of complying with the minimum
company membership requirements.
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Report of the Directors ¢ EE&#RE

Except as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2007, neither the
Chief Executive Officer nor any of the Directors of the Company
had or was deemed to have any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) (i) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS" RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Except as disclosed above and in note 29 to the financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company
granted to any of the Directors or their respective spouses or
children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised
by any of them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Concerning the share options granted during the year to the
Directors and employees as detailed above and in note 29 to the
financial statements, the Directors do not consider it appropriate
to disclose any theoretical value of the options granted because,
in the absence of a readily available market value of the share
options in the ordinary shares of the Company, the Directors were
unable to arrive at an accurate assessment of the value of the
share options.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS® AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

(U]

Persons who have an interest or short position which
is discloseable under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO and Substantial Shareholders

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31st December
2007, the following persons (not being Directors or the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company) had, or were
deemed to have, interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares which are required to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were
directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
member of the Group:

Report of the Directors « EEE#H&E

FTERRRAEMALTRAROG REBER
MZEER AR

()

BAEARBESRBAEHROIEXVEE2RIS B
BREZRANRKAZALTREIERRE

BEEMA R-FELF+-_A=+—H" T
FIAL (WHETEERARBITHAE) K 348
Bihe  BEEXEEREEREESFRBER
PIZEXVED 552 K 30 ff 6 STAR [A) AR 2 ) T High 52 P 4%
BomdORR  REEZNREEBHAENT
REMBRAEREEETMAKERAR ZBRRRGKR
RZEFBARRAEEI10%RA L2 s

() Interests in the shares and underlying shares (i) R RIBER D2 B
Approximate
No. of percentage of issued
shares and/or share capital as at
Name of underlying 31st December 2007
substantial Nature of shares held mZEELE
shareholder Interest  FT#EEEHH R = Position +-A=+—Hz
TERFERA BEeE HEARKEE #E CSBITREABAOES I
Mr. Tse Hoi Chau (Note 1) Beneficial owner 104,761,904 Long 10.12%
Tse Hoi Chaust & (f1at1) ERBAA =)
Notes: HtaE -
1. Mr. Tse Hoi Chau was interested in 104,761,904 1. Tse Hoi Chau%t4#4104,761,904 /%

underlying shares which may be allotted and
issued upon the exercise of conversion rights
attaching to convertible loan notes issued by the
Company.
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Report of the Directors « EE&HE

(i) Interests in shares of associated corporations of
the Company

(i) R L A% B R (2 2

Name of Class and no. Percentage
subsidiary Name of entity of securities shareholdings
P B BB BEReE e HSEMNREE BREBS
TVH Cyber Technology Ltd. Yi Jun Yong 200 ordinary shares 20%

REHBRIRER AT VL] of HK$1 each (L)

200/ B AR TE B

VBT Bk (L)

BMC Software (China) Ltd. BMC Software 1 ordinary share of
(HK) Ltd HK$1 (L) 10%

1TREBE1BTZ

TimAk (L)

L. represents a long position in the securities

Except as disclosed above and so far as the Directors are aware,
as at 31st December 2007, no other party (other than the Directors
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company) had any interest
or short position in the shares, the underlying shares or debentures
of the Company which would be required to be disclosed to the
Company under provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to herein.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Throughout the year ended 31st December 2007, the Company
has complied with the Code provisions and recommended best
practices of the Code, except for certain deviations. Details of
corporate governance are set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” in this annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 12th June 1999 with clear written terms of
reference. For the year ended 31st December 2007 and as at
the date of this report, the Audit Committee was comprised of
three members, all of whom were Independent Non-Executive
Directors. The composition of the Audit Committee as at the date
of this report was Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Albert Theodore Powers and Mr. Pang Seng Tuong.

The Audit Committee meets twice a year to review the annual
and interim results and the accompanying auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and practices adopted by the Company, and
the financial and internal control systems of the Company.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s audited financial
statements for the year ended 31st December 2007, including the
auditor’s report thereon, and has submitted its views to the Board.

AUDITORS

The Company appointed Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
as auditors of the Company to fill the vacancy following the
resignation of Messrs. Lawrence CPA Limited on 14th January
2008. The Audit Committee and the Board were in agreement
and shared the same views with regards to the resignation of the
former auditors and the selection and appointment of the new
auditors.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited will retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Mr. Tse Michael Nam
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21st April, 2008
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Corporate Governance Report o %

The Board and Management of the Company are highly
committed to maintaining good corporate governance practices
and transparency in fulfilling their corporate responsibility and
accountability to the Company's Shareholders. The Board and
Management recognize that the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices is an essential factor in achieving financial
success and enhancing shareholder value.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(a) Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31st December 2007, the
Company has complied with the code provisions and
recommended best practices of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) under Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules, except for certain deviations as set
out below. The Board will continue to review and monitor
the Company’s corporate governance practices to ensure
compliance with the Code.

(b) Director’s Securities Transactions

The Model Code in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
has been adopted as the code for Directors’ securities
transaction for the Company. After having made specific
enquiry of all the Directors, each of the Directors confirms
that he has complied with the Model Code for the year
ended 31st December 2007.

(c) Board of Directors

Currently, the Board is composed of five members
comprising two Executive Directors (including the
Chairman) and three Independent Non-Executive Directors.
For approximately four and a half months during the year
ended 31st December 2007, there were four Independent
Non-Executive Directors.
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(c)

Board of Directors (continued)

The Board is tasked with the responsibility of directing and
supervising the Company’s businesses and affairs and
promoting its success and growth. The Board is collectively
responsible for the management and operations of the
Company and is overall responsible for directing and
supervising the Management of the Company with regards
to the implementation and maintenance of internal control
procedures and ensuring compliance with relevant statutory
requirements, the Stock Exchange Listing Rules and other
rules and regulations.

The day to day management of the Company is the
responsibility of the Management of the Company.

The Board meets regularly. During the year, four regular
Board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
intervals. Notices for regular Board meetings were given to
all Directors at least 14 days prior to the meetings.

Prior to the Board meetings (for regular meetings, at
least 3 days prior), the Chairman, with the support of the
Company Secretary, ensures that every Director has been
properly briefed on issues and provided with the agenda
and accompanying Board papers containing adequate
information to enable them to make informed decisions.
Every member of the Board has an opportunity to propose
matters in the agenda for discussion at the Board meetings.

Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of committees
are taken by the Company Secretary and maintained
at the Company’s premises. Minutes of the Board and
committee meetings record in sufficient detail the matters
considered by the Board or committee and decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors
or dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions of
minutes are sent to all Directors for their comments within
a reasonable time after the Board meetings are held.
Every member of the Board is entitled to inspect Board
papers and related materials and has unrestricted access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to
ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations, are followed. Where queries are raised by any
of the Directors, responses are provided as promptly and
fully as possible. The Directors may also seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
expense of the Company.
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(c)

Board of Directors (continued)

The attendance of each of the Directors at Board meetings
and meetings of the Audit and Remuneration Committees is
set out below :—

BEe (A

EEENREFES S BRZEESgER
BggmztEENT

¥ =

No. of meetings attended/held

W BITEHRE

Audit Remuneration
Directors Board Committee Committee
S By EZEEY FMESY
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Tse Michael Nam 51/54 - -
HEESRE
Mr. Chan Tze Ngon 65/66 - -
R+ 5 e
Mr. Tang Kin Hung 16/18 - -
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BILEHITES
Mr. Fu Yan Yan 11/47 11 -
BRI 58 4
Ms. Wang Xi Ling 11/47 11 -
FARELLL
Mr. Benedict Tai 22/66 2/2 2/2
B S A
Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John 16/54 1/1 2/2
Lim Yew Kong, JohnJt 4
Mr. Puongpun Sananikone 11/19 1/1 2/2
Puongpun Sananikone4t4E
The Board met 66 times in total for the year ended 31st HE-_TTLtF+ZA=+—HLFE EFg

December 2007, including 4 regular meetings, of which
2 were full Board meetings for the approval of the interim
and annual results of the Company. During the year, the
Board also met to discuss and approve the entering into
of material agreements and transactions as well as to
review the effectiveness of the financial and internal control
systems of the Company.

The Company maintained an appropriate level of insurance
cover in respect of legal action against the Directors and
officers of the Company and its subsidiaries throughout the
year ended 31st December 2007.

An updated list of the Company’s Directors and key
Management members including a description of their roles
and functions is maintained on the Company’s website.
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(d)

(e)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under Code provision A.2.1, the roles of the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. From
1st March 2007 to the date of this report, both roles were
performed by Mr. Tse Michael Nam. The Board considers
Mr. Tse's experience and knowledge crucial in managing
and executing the transformation of the Company and
its subsidiaries into an agro-conservation and bio-energy
conglomerate.

The Board is also confident that Mr. Tse is capable of
fulfilling his responsibilities as Chairman of the Board,
including ensuring that the Board operates effectively and
discharges its responsibilities, ensuring good corporate
governance practices and procedures are established,
and providing effective communication with the Company’s
Shareholders and that views of the Shareholders are
communicated to the Board as a whole.

The Board does not believe that the current situation
will impair the balance of power and authority between
the Board and the Management and does not currently
propose to separate the functions.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

During the year, the Company has been in compliance
with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Code by having at all
times at least three Independent Non-Executive Directors
on its Board and at least one who has the appropriate
professional accounting qualifications.

As at the date of this report, the Company is also in
compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Code.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors was
appointed for an initial term of not more than two years
from the date of his appointment. Upon the expiry of the
initial term, the appointment may be renewed for another
term of not more than two years. In accordance with the
Bye-Laws of the Company, every Director of the Board
(including the Independent Non-Executive Directors) is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by the
Company’s Shareholders at least once every three years.
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(e)

(f)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors meets
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Code and the Company considers each of them to be so.
The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors an annual confirmation as to his
independence.

Remuneration Committee

The Company’'s Remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was established in June
2005 with specific written terms of reference detailing the
Committee’s role and authority.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring
formal and transparent procedures for developing
remuneration policies and overseeing the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior Management and
making recommendations to the Board in respect of the
same. In fulfilling its functions, the Remuneration Committee
takes into consideration factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, respective time commitment, and
responsibilities of the Directors and Management, and
whether the remuneration packages are competitively
attractive to retain the Executive Directors and senior
Management. The Remuneration Committee members may
consult the Chairman of the Board about their proposals
relating to the remuneration of the Executive Directors and
have access to sufficient resources including professional
advice if considered necessary.

For the year ended 31st December 2007 and as at the date
of this report, the Remuneration Committee was comprised
of three members, all of whom were Independent Non-
Executive Directors. As at the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee was comprised of Mr. Lim Yew
Kong, John, Mr. Albert Theodore Powers and Mr. Pang Seng
Tuong.

The Remuneration Committee is to meet twice a year
and it met in July and December in the year ended 31st
December 2007.
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(9)

(h)

(U]

Nomination Committee

The company did not establish a nomination committee.
The Board considers that the appointment and removal of
Directors are the collective decision of the Board and thus
does not intend to adopt the recommended best practice
under Code A.4.4 to establish a nomination committee.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The auditors’ remuneration for the year ended 31st

December 2007 was as follows:

(9)

(h)

Zax)

Corporate Governance Report ¢ EERKE

REZERE

ARARLBRIIEFEZEG - EFERA EF
ZEERBRREMETSRERTE HAit  #F
BRBRRATREALAGRIR T RERERRKIL
REEZBEE -

= &

HE-_TZ+F+_-_A=1+—HILFE2%HM
BT

Nature of work Amount
IEHE o)
Audit Fee HK$800,0007% 7T
EZER

Non-audit Services (Major transactions) HK$200,000/& 7T
HERRB (EARS)

Audit Committee

The Company’'s Audit Committee (the "Audit Committee”)
was established in June 1999 with clear written terms
of reference. The primary duties of the audit committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditors, approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors, reviewing and
monitoring the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards, monitoring the
integrity of the Company’s financial statements, annual
report and accounts, half-year report and accounting
policies, as well as overseeing the Company’'s financial
controls, internal control systems and risk management
systems.

For the year ended 31st December 2007 and as at the date
of this report, the Audit Committee was comprised of three
members, all of whom were Independent Non-Executive
Directors. The composition of the Audit Committee as at the
date of this report was Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John, (Chairman
of the Audit Committee), Mr. Albert Theodore Powers and
Mr. Pang Seng Tuong.
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Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the
auditors of the Company, the Directors, the Company’s
qualified accountant, and other members of Management
and met with the auditors twice during the year ended 31st
December 2007.

The Company appointed Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited as auditors of the Company to fill the vacancy
following the resignation of Messrs. Lawrence CPA Limited
on 14th January 2008. The Audit Committee and the Board
were in agreement and shared the same views with regards
to the resignation of the former auditors and the selection
and appointment of the new auditors.

The Audit Committee met twice during the year ended 31st
December 2007 to review the annual and interim results
and the accompanying auditor’'s report, the accounting
policies and practices adopted by the Company, and to
review the financial and internal control systems of the
Company.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s audited
financial statements for the year ended 31st December
2007 including the auditor’'s report thereon and has
submitted its views to the Board.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and
that the financial statements are prepared in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. It is also the responsibility of the Directors to
ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of
the Company.

The statement of the auditors of the Company, SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited, on their reporting responsibilities in
respect of the financial statements of the Company is set
out on pages 47 and 48.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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(k)

Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for ensuring
a sound and effective internal control system is maintained
within the Company and its subsidiaries to safeguard
the Company’'s assets and its Shareholders’ investments.
The Directors conduct a review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal controls once a year. Pursuant to
provision 2.5 of the Code, the Board reviewed the need for
an internal audit function and considered it appropriate to
outsource the function.

Accordingly, Cachet Certified Public Accountants Limited
was engaged in December 2007 to carry out an internal
audit review of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
financial year ended 31st December 2007. The review
covered all material controls including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions of
the Company.

Cachet Certified Public Accountants Limited completed its
internal audit review and satisfactorily concluded that the
key areas of the internal control systems of the Company
are sufficiently effective and adequate in safeguarding
the assets of the Company. Their review did not uncover
any significant areas of concern which may affect
Shareholders.
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Independent Auditor's Report ¢ By ZE RS

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
16/F., United Centre

Eue

Shinezoing

95 Queensway, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GREEN GLOBAL RESOURCES
LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS VENTURE INTERNATIONAL
INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED)

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Green
Global Resources Limited (formerly known as Venture International
Investment Holdings Limited) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to
148, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st
December 2007, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.
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Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st
December 2007 and of the Group's loss and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Tam Kwok Ming, Banny

Practising Certificate Number: P03289

Hong Kong
21st April 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement ¢ &&

=]

For the year ended 31st December 2007

BHE

KRz R

ST+ E+-A=+—AILLEE

2007 2006
—TELE ZETX
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt F FET FHT
Turnover 3 9 72,252 58,740
Cost of sales SHE KA (57,546) (46,069)
Gross profit E 7 14,706 12,671
Other operating income H A s 9 21,764 1,625
Gain on disposal of HE R HERE 2 W
available-for-sale investments 21,844 9,290
Gain arising from changes in EMEEZATEZE
fair value less estimated point-of-sale R M 5T 8 5 B A AR
costs of biological assets FEE & 2 Wz 21 11,255 =
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHE R (4,786) (3,555)
Administrative expenses THER (50,500) (27,897)
Other operating expenses B EER (7,718) (542)
Profit (loss) from operations R A (BE) 10 6,565 (8,408)
Impairment loss recognised EREBRHEER
in respect of goodwill (40,771) -
Impairment loss of unlisted AHEEE EHRE
available-for-sale investment WA EE - (3,200)
Finance costs BhE A 11 (1,842) (25)
Loss before taxation bR B4 Al ES 18 (36,048) (11,633)
Income tax (expense) credit FrB®l () Ex 12 (1,209) 1,642
Loss for the year FEEE (37,257) (9,991)
Attributable to: =
Equity holders of the Company AAaEEERERA (37,679) (9,991)
Minority interests DEAR R 422 =
(37,257) (9,991)
Loss per share BRERE
Basic HAK 13 HK$0.04)% 7T HK$0.02/% 7T
Diluted #Ek N/AA i A N/AA i A
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Consolidated Balance Sheet « #EEEEER

As at 31st December 2007 RZZTELHF+-_A=+—8H
2007 2006
—EFLHE —EBERF
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5 FHT T T
Non-current assets EMBEE
Plant and equipment B E Kk 16 8,230 1,379
Deferred plantation expenditure EEREER 17 33,000 =
Deposit for plantation expenditure BHEAY € 34,808 =
Intangible assets ERAE 18 165,225 1,696
Goodwill EES 19 156,873 45,805
398,136 48,880
Current assets RBEE
Inventories "E 20 5,192 8,857
Biological assets EMEE 21 12,071 =
Available-for-sale investments A EERE 22 = 66,591
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EHMERKIE 23 32,411 42,817
Bank balances and cash WITHEBRRAS 24
- pledged — B - 15,624
— unpledged — EIR 72,939 56,630
122,613 190,519
Current liabilities mBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 KR H A E RIE 25 70,623 61,451
Income tax liabilities s aE 7,109 6,938
Bank overdrafts RITEX 24 = 18
77,732 68,407
Net current assets RBEEFE 44,881 122,112
Total assets less current liabilities BERLERRDARE 443,017 170,992
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Consolidated Balance Sheet « &8 EEERER

-

As at 31st December 2007 RZZEZ+EFEF+-_A=+—H
2007 2006
ZEEEE —ETREF
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt F FET FHT
Capital and reserves BERRfEE
Share capital N 26 103,526 67,500
Reserves f# 219,269 103,492
Equity attributable to equity holders RApalEmfsE AELER
of the Company 322,795 170,992
Minority interests D R R = 2,555 =
Total equity T o MR 325,350 170,992
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Convertible loan notes MR ERER 27 75,878 =
Deferred tax liability EERIE B & 28 41,789 =
117,667 -
443,017 170,992

The consolidated financial statements on pages 49 to 148 were $49F148B 2R AU B REN T ENFNA =+ —
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on H#&HRESEHERKETIE WAL TESTRAEES
21st April 2008 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Tse Michael Nam Mr. Puongpun Sananikone
BEELE Puongpun Sananikone’t 4
£ £
Director Director
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nsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity « &reEE28HR%

For the year ended 31st December 2007 BHE-_ZTT+tF+-_A=1+—HLLFE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
KATREREARE
Exchange Convertible Share  Statutory
translation bonds options surplus Minority
Share Share  Contributed reserve Other reserve reserve reserve  Accumulated interests

capital  premium  surplus ER  reserve  TiRES BhiE  irES losses Total  HHER Total
BE  RBER  HAB&  BERE  EREE ik BE  LBRE  28ER &t 4] ]
HESOD  HKGOOD KGO0 HKSO  HKGOOD  HKSOOD HKSOOD  HKSODD  HKSOOD  HKSODD  HKSOMD  HKSOM
Tér  TErn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn T T Thn

(note)
(&)
At 1st January 2008 REENE
-A-A 55135 342312 (19 304 10,228 - - - (9334) 165,309 - 165,309
Gainon fair velug changes W EHERE
of available-for-sale AVEZD
investments and recognised B R
directly in equity eEdl - - - - 11431 - - - - 11,431 - 11,431
Exchange differencearising ~ #EBHEREEL
on franslation of overseas ~ EXEE
operation - - - 38 - - - - - 138 - 138
Loss for the year EEER - - - = = = - - (9.991) (9.991) - (9.991)
Totalrecognised income and~ FMERDHAR
expenses for the year BRoE - - - 138 11431 - - - (9,991) 2178 - 2178
Issue of consideration shares &t ER 11,765 25 - - - - - - - 12000 - 12000
Recogniton of equity-settled ~ ERALE
share based paymens Rt - - - - - - 1505 - - 1505 - 150
At 315t December 2006 HNZEEE
t-A=1-H 67500 342547 (19) 1132 2,699 - 1,506 - (263332) 170,992 - 170,992
Reserve released on disposal 1 ERERERE - - - - () - - - - (1) - (1)
Exchange differencearisng ~ BEBIEEERZ
onfranglation of overseas X ZEE
operation - - - 2465 - - - - - 2466 - 2466
Loss (proft for the year ERER(EA) - - - - - - - - (TeTe) (31679 0 (31
Transfer fromacoumulated ~ EEZEEEEA
|osses - - - - - - - 576 (576) - - -
Totalrecognised income and ~ FMERBHAR
exoenses for e year gRsE - - S (6 : : 6 (825 (68T o s
Issue of convertiole loan notes - & TAREH S - - - - - 9205 - - - 2205 - 29205
Issue of shares upon RN TEREGRA
- placement of shares —RERR 21000 109,730 - - - - - - - 136730 - %70
- conversion of convertible  — SATRRER
loan notes E3 1 3,880 18217 - - - (5,356) - - - 16,739 - 16,739
- evercise of share options ~ — {1 E B 5,146 5233 - - - - (2769) - - 7610 - 7610
Recogniion of equiy-seifed ~ ERRALE
share based payments RS - - - = = = 18372 = - 18372 = 18372
Capital conributed by minority  KERZ)E
shareholders of subsiolaries k& & - - - - - - - - - - 21% 21%
At 315t December 2007 i
592 +ZA=1-H 103526 475,721 (19 3591 - 23867 17108 576 (301,587) 322,19 2566 325,350
Note: Subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China have appropriated 10% A7 - REZEARANB Z B A TS M 10% % OEER
of the profit to the statutory surplus reserve which is required to be HAEEE EEFEARBRKBARKE REETER
retained in the accounts of the subsidiaries for specific purposes. & e
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement ¢ 8B E&HRER

For the year ended 31st December 2007 BHE-_TT+tF+-_A=1+—HLFE
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2007 2006
—EELE ZETREF
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt = TFHET FHBT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEETR
Loss before taxation KRB AT E 18 (36,048) (11,633)
Adjustments for: MRS HEEL AR
Bad debt directly written off H MR 4,257 =
Gain arising from changes in EMEECATEEZS
fair value less estimated point-of-sale A ET 8 B AR
costs of biological assets FrEE £ 2 W (11,255) =
Impairment loss recognised in MEEmRIREEE
respect of goodwill 40,771 -
Impairment loss recognised in PEF & ERRRE
respect of intangible assets B8 1,173 -
Impairment loss recognised in B E 5 e BRI R
respect of trade receivables REEE 2,296 528
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary s — B AR EE 2 EE 1 =
Interest income F B A (1,987) (547)
Amortisation of intangible assets mREEEE 2,571 97
Depreciation e 1,285 1,520
Impairment loss of unlisted A EHEIELETRE
available-for-sale investment REEE = 3,200
Loss on disposal of plant HEmE kR EEE
and equipment 71 151
Gain on disposal of plant equipment & S N R e e (30) (400)
Gain on disposal of EERHEERE
available-for-sale investments 2 Wz (21,844) (9,290)
Finance costs A& KA 1,842 25
Share-based payment expenses B 2 15 5% & 18,372 1,505
Operating cash flow before movements Rt EBEEZE)
in working capital AR ERERE 1,475 (14,844)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FER L GEM) 4,279 (5,413)
Decrease (increase) in trade and B 5 & H th fE W 5118
other receivables A (3 ) 3,886 (726)
(Decrease) increase in trade and B 5 & E T 5 IR
other payables Ok 2>) 3 A (12,169) 20,076
Increase in biological assets AW E ERE N (275) =
Cash used in operations XBRAES (2,804) (907)
PRC enterprise income tax paid EHREEMER (1,038) (620)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (&% %5 BE &858 (3,842) (1,527) &
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

BE-TRLF+-AS+—ALEE

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement ¢ 8B ERER

2007 2006
—ETLHE ZETREF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
ks F#T FAT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Acquisition of subsidiaries &)= 30 (139,191) (19,639)
Deposit for plantation expenditure BEAZI® (34,808) =
Payment of deferred plantation expenditure EETEE R (33,541) =
Purchases of plant and equipment BERE REE (8,127) (537)
Proceeds from disposal of HEAHEERE
available-for-sale investments F 18 338 67,578 42,630
Decrease (increase) in pledged B 8 E B 17 5O
time deposits (3% ) 15,624 (15,485)
Interest received B I F 8 1,987 547
Decrease (increase) in other time BAKIBHBEA=EANE
deposits with maturity of more than 2 E A E BEFR L
three months when acquired (3% hn) 1,281 (39,907)
Proceed from disposal of a subsidiary & — B A R AT {5 3E 31 248 =
Proceeds from disposal of HERE K
plant and equipment 18 338 30 400
Acquisition of intangible assets WREREE = (1,796)
NET CASH USED IN BEEREHA
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFHR (128,919) (33,787)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Interest paid [EENEIESS = (1)
Repayment of obligations BEREHERE
under finance lease - (254)
Interest paid for obligations HEERERE
under finance lease Btz HE = (24)
Proceeds from issue of shares BTG FT1S5KIE 136,730 =
Proceeds from exercise of share options IR EREMRSHRIE 7,610 =
Contribution from minority shareholders LYRFEE 2,133 -
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) MEFDRE (A REFHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 146,473 (279)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH RERREEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Gl ) B8 13,712 (35,593)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FMZBREREEEEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 16,705 51,547
EFFECT OF FOREIGN SEEXEHHE
EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES 1,136 751
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ERZBEERBEESED 24
END OF THE YEAR I, 663 16,705
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Annual Report 2007 £ ¥



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements e ,.R/E.\Eﬂ%iﬁﬂﬁﬁi‘-

For the year ended 31st December 2007

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability. The shares of the Company
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate
Information section to the Annual Report.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), and the functional currency of the
Company is in Renminbi (“RMB”).

As the Company is listed in Hong Kong, the directors of
the Company consider that it is appropriate to present the
consolidated financial statements in HK$.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) was principally involved in the distribution of
information technology products, the provision of computer
technology services and the carrying on of property
agency business in the People’'s Republic of China (the
“PRC"). During the year, the Company also embarked
on the new businesses of agro-conservation and the
cultivation of raw materials for the bio-energy industry.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following new standard, amendment and
interpretations (“new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), which
are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning 1st
January 2007.

Hong Kong Accounting  Capital Disclosures
Standard (*HKAS") 1

(Amendment)
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation Applying the Restatement Approach under HKAS 29
(“INT") 7 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
HK(IFRIC)-INT 8 Scope of HKFRS 2
HK(IFRIC)-INT 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

HK(IFRIC)-INT 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on
how the results and financial position for the current or prior
accounting periods have been prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendment and interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

Presentation of Financial Statements’

Borrowing Cost!

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statement®

Share-based Payment - Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations'

Business Combination®

Operating Segments'

HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share Transactions?

HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC)-INT 11

HK(IFRIC)-INT 12 Service Concession Arrangements®

HK(IFRIC)-INT 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes*

HK(IFRIC)-INT 14 HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements

and their Interaction®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January 2009.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st March 2007.

€ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January 2008.

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st July 2008.

< Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1st July 2009.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these standards or interpretations will have
no material impact on the results and the financial position
of the Group.
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No.’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements e

For the year ended 31st December 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(a)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including special purpose entities) controlled by
the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved
where the Company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

GREEN GLOBAL RESOURCES LIMITED #&IRHREREIRD A

BE

3.

e B HRRM

ST+ E+-A=t+—ALLEE

TESEBE

KRB M BEMRTIRE LR EEFR - T
BETHERAME T2/ T ATIEAFERE -

REVBRRERETBSFIMASEMBLES
MBMEERNREL - LS &7 A W5 WK B I B
RFRE A £ R R R A A ARG R E B0 E A %

=

(a) GEEE

K aMBREBEARARARARA (K
MEAR) ZHNER(BEEKRENE
BNUBHRER BEARAEREEZXE
BOYBRSERRUREZSEE &
A A BV R A -

RENFKRBRHENMBRR XA
HERBENBHESBRELEENAH
LE(AER) st AR A IRERA -

MAEFE  AEEEHKNE QR TR
RIEMAE  FEEFBRERNKEEAM
BB RABIFARAE R —B -

FESERRS &8 WARFEHR
fREBRE R RN o

Annual Report 2007 £ ¥



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements e ﬁéﬁﬁ%iﬁﬂﬁﬁi‘

For the year ended 31st December 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the
Group’s equity therein. Minority interests in the net
assets consist of the amount of those interests at
the date of the original business combination and
the minority’'s share of changes in equity since
the date of the combination. Losses applicable to
the minority in excess of the minority’s interest in
the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the
interests of the Group except to the extent that the
minority has a binding obligation and is able to
make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using
the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at
the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that
meet the conditions for recognition under HKFRS
3 “Business Combinations” are recognised at
their fair values at the acquisition date, except
for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that
are classified as held for sale in accordance with
HKFRS 5 “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations”, which are recognised
and measured at fair value less costs to sell.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as
an asset and initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the cost of the business combination
over the Group's interest in the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment,
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the
business combination, the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree
is initially measured at the minority’s proportion
of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements e ﬁéﬁﬁ%iﬁﬂﬁﬁi‘

For the year ended 31st December 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group's interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the relevant business at the date of
acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition
of a business is presented separately in the
consolidated balance sheet.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each
of the relevant cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a financial year, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata
on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.
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3.

=

Noftes fo the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Goodwill (Continued)

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-
generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill
capitalised is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. Alternatively, intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in
the consolidated income statement when the asset
is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are identified and recognised separately from
goodwill where they satisfy the definition of an
intangible asset and their fair values can be
measured reliably. The cost of such intangible assets
is their fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
with finite useful lives are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Research and development expenditures

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the year in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is
anticipated that the development costs incurred on
a clearly-defined project will be recovered through
future commercial activity. The resultant asset is
amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life,
and carried at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

The amount initially recognised for internally-
generated intangible asset is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can
be recognised, development expenditure is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-
generated intangible asset is reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets acquired separately.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
items of plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in the consolidated
income statement in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised on the consolidated balance sheet when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into
one of the two categories, including financial
assets at loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial assets. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace. The accounting
policies adopted in respect of each category of
financial assets are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective basis for debt
instruments.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. At each balance
sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, and bank balances) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated or not
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recognised in equity, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at
which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they
are measured as cost less any identified impairment
losses at each balance sheet date subsequent
to initial recognition (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, are assessed for indicators of
impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
that investment below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such
as trade and other receivables, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group's past experience of collective payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period of 90 days,
observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements e ﬁéﬁﬁ%iﬁﬂﬁﬁi‘
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not
be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade and
other receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade and other receivables are considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credit to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if,
in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements o %4 B8Rk HizT

For the year ended 31st December 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed in profit or loss
in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised
directly in equity. For available-for-sale debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial
liabilities are generally classified as other financial
liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements e ﬁéﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁi‘

For the year ended 31st December 2007

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method (Continued)

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and bank overdrafts are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Convertible loan notes

Convertible loan notes issued by the Group that
contain both the liability and conversion option
components are classified separately into respective
items on initial recognition. Conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company’s own equity instruments is classified
as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the gross proceeds of the issue
of the convertible loan notes and the fair value
assigned to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert the loan
notes into equity, is included in equity (convertible
bonds reserve).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements o %4 B8R & HaT

For the year ended 31st December 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f)

72

Financial instruments (Continued)

Convertible loan notes (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible loan notes is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The equity
component, representing the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible bonds reserve
until the embedded option is exercised (in which
case the balance stated in convertible loan notes
equity reserve will be transferred to share premium).
Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry
date, the balance stated in convertible loan notes
equity reserve will be released to the retained
earnings. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of
the convertible loan notes are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion to
the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged
directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability portion and amortised over
the period of the convertible loan notes using the
effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’'s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements e

For the year ended 31st December 2007

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Biological assets

Biological assets are living plants involved in the
agricultural activities of the transformation of
biological assets for sales, into agricultural produce
or into additional biological assets. Biological assets
are measured at fair value less estimated point-of-
sale costs at initial recognition and at each balance
sheet date. The fair value of biological assets is
determined based on either the present value of
expected net cash flows from the biological assets
discounted at a current market-determined pre-
tax rate or the market price with reference to the
species, growing condition, cost incurred and
expected yield of the crops.

The agricultural produce is initially measured at fair
value less estimated point-of-sale costs at the time
of harvest. The fair value of agricultural produce is
measured at the market prices in the local market.
The fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs
at the time of harvest is deemed as the cost of
agricultural produce for further processing.

The gain or loss arising on initial recognition of
biological asset at fair value less estimated point-of-
sale costs is recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the period in which it arises.

Deferred plantation expenditure

Deferred plantation expenditure is stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment. Amortisation is charged to the cost of
biological assets on a straight-line basis over the
period of thirty years.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net

realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in,
first-out method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements e ,.R/E.\Eﬂ%iﬁﬂﬁﬁi‘-

For the year ended 31st December 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(1

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets with finite useful lives

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements o %4 B8Rk HzT

For the year ended 31st December 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(k) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal
course of business, net of discounts and sales
related taxes.

i) Sale of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised
on the transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered to
customers and the title has passed.

ii) Service income

Service income is recognised when services
are provided.

iii) Management fee income

Management fee income is recognised when
services are provided.

iv) Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements o ﬁéﬁﬁ%iﬁﬂﬁﬁi‘

For the year ended 31st December 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

U

Equity settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of
the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will continue to be held in share options
reserve.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for services
are measured at the fair values of the services
received, unless the fair value cannot be reliably
measured, in which case the services received are
measured by reference to the fair value of the share
options granted. The fair values of the services
received are recognised as expenses immediately,
unless the services qualify for recognition as assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements o %4 B8Rk HzT

For the year ended 31st December 2007

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
as reported in the consolidated income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit, and are accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements e ﬁéﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁi‘

For the year ended 31st December 2007

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m)

(n)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset realised. Deferred tax is
charged or credited to profit or loss, except when
it relates to items charged or credited directly to
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt
with in equity.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At each balance sheet date,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements e

For the year ended 31st December 2007

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise, except for exchange differences
arising on a monetary item that forms part of the
Company’s net investment in a foreign operation,
in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in equity in the consolidated financial
statements. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in equity, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
balance sheet date, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised as a separate component of equity
(the exchange translation reserve). Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation and translated at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the
exchange translation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements e ,.R/E.\Eﬂ%iﬁﬂﬁﬁi‘-

For the year ended 31st December 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(o)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessess. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Company as lessee

Asset held under finance leases are recognised
as assets of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges
are charged directly to the income statement.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007 BHE-_ZTT+tF+-_A=1+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEFHEw

(Continued)

(p) Government grants (p) BT 48 B
Government grants are recognised as income BN ERAEE R HME 2 HE
over the periods necessary to match them with the HRBWA - EHEEBITEEEZFHMZT
related costs. Grants related to depreciable assets BIETEWA - REERFERFHRBER
are presented as deferred income and are released A BERAMEZEE 2R ZERIZIIA
to income over the useful lives of the assets. Grants FeEWmKk 2 ERBAMER - WIS WK
related to expense items are recognised in the SEMRAXEMR DRE25 R HM
same period as those expenses are charged in the = NI

consolidated income statement and are deducted
in reporting the related expense/are reported
separately as “other operating income”.

(a)  Retirement benefit costs () EBAEBFKEX
Payments to state-managed retirement benefit A B 2R B 28 AR O 4B A 5t 8 R R E kG &l
scheme and the defined contribution schemes are IHORERETREZRESESER
charged as an expense when employees have ZHHEREER R -

rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

(r) Borrowing costs (r) BERE
All borrowing costs are recognised as and included FIEEERAREERERE KaRER
in finance costs in the consolidated income RABRSIERERA

statement in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements e é%éﬁﬁ%iﬁ%lzﬁﬁi‘

For the year ended 31st December 2007

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value-in-
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As
at 31st December 2007, the carrying amount of goodwill
was approximately HK$156,873,000. Details of impairment
testing on goodwill are set out in note 19(a).

Depreciation of plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking
into account of their estimated residual values. The
determination of the useful lives and residual values involve
management’s estimation. The Group assesses annually
the residual value and the useful life of the plant and
equipment and if the expectation differs from the original
estimate, such a difference may impact the depreciation
in the year and the estimate will be changed in the future
period.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade receivables

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers and adjusts credit limits based on payment
history and the customer’s current credit-worthiness, as
determined by the review of their current credit information.
The Group continuously monitors collections and payments
from its customers and maintains a provision for estimated
credit losses based upon its historical experience and
any specific customer collection issues that its has been
identified. Credit losses have historically been within the
Group’s expectations and the Group will continue to monitor
the collections from customers and maintain an appropriate
level of estimated credit losses.

Impairment of plant and equipment

The impairment loss for plant and equipment are
recognised for the amounts by which the carrying amounts
exceed their recoverable amounts, in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy. The recoverable amounts
of plant and equipment have been determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates such as the future revenue and discount
rates. No impairment was provided during the year.

Fair values of biological assets

The Group’'s management determines the fair values less
estimated point-of-sale costs of biological assets on initial
recognition and at each balance sheet date with reference
to the market prices, cultivation area, species, growing
conditions, cost incurred and expected yield of the crops.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007 BHE-_TT+tF+-_A=1+—HLFE
5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. BEXREKRER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the AEB EAEBEERRAEERNCFEER
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while HaFELE  RREREBLEBLRERALEREA
maximising the return to stakeholders through optimisation REFFERZABR - NEE 2 ERBRKERBEF
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall ERFE—2 -
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which AEBNERNERBREGED (R F27HEH A
includes convertible loan notes disclosed in note 27, cash BRREFER) B RBASEEBUREARAR
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity BREAELGER(SEBTRARMEE) - AR
holders of the Company, comprising issued share capital AESTEHEZREALGER EFIPRERERK
and reserves. The directors of the Company review the AREZBERNEE AR - ZBES2EH
capital structure periodically. As a part of this review, the AEBE B BIRMNRE - BITHR R 5 E 8
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital Rt EREOREEBATFTHEERBE RS
and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based I o
on the recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well
as issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. T=T@MIA
Categories of financial instruments EHMIBMSE
2007 2006
—EFLE ZEZEREFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEx
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE = 66,591
Loans and receivables (including B3 & E W I8
cash and cash equivalents) (BRAERRSEED) 105,350 115,071
Financial liabilities at amortised cost SR EE GREHEKA) 146,501 61,469
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’'s major financial instruments include equity
investments, trade and other receivables, trade and other
payables, bank balances and cash, and bank overdrafts.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk associated with movements
in foreign currency rates which will affect the Group’s
financial results and its cashflow. The management
considers the Group is not exposed to significant foreign
currency risk as the majority of its operations and
transactions are in the PRC with their functional currency of
RMB.

For the year ended 31st December 2007 and 2006, the
Group mainly earns revenue in RMB and incurs costs in
HK$ and RMB. Although, the Group currently does not
have any foreign currency hedging policies, it manages its
currency exposure by ensuring that the revenue earned
in RMB are used to pay for RMB denominated costs.
Funds raised from financing activities which are mainly in
HK$ are used to pay for HK$ expenses and HK$ costs of
acquisitions.

The directors do not expect the appreciation of the RMB
against the HK$ to have any material adverse effect on the
operation of the Group.

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing liabilities,
the Group’'s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors will default on
their obligations to repay the amounts owing to the Group,
resulting in a loss to the Group. The maximum exposure
to credit risk in the event that the counterparties fail to
perform their obligations as end of the financial year
in relation to each class of recognised financial assets
in the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet.

The Group has no significant credit risks as it has policies
in place to ensure that sales of products and services
are made to customers with appropriate credit history.
The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties and obtaining substantial
collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating
the risk of financial loss from defaults, The Group only
transacts with entities with good repayment history.

The Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables consist
of a large number of customers, spread across diverse
industries and geographical areas.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Agricultural activity

The Group’s revenue depends significantly on the ability to
harvest agricultural products at adequate levels. The ability
to harvest agricultural products and the growth of the
agricultural products in the plantation may be affected by
infavourable local weather conditions and natural disasters
such as earthquakes, fire, disease, insect infestation and
pests are examples of such events. The occurrence of
severe weather conditions or natural disasters may impede
the Group’s agro-conservation and bio-energy operations
or the growth of the agricultural products in the plantations,
which in turn may have a material adverse effect on the
Group's performance.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows.

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-
derivatives financial liabilities, the table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007 BHE-_TT+tF+-_A=1+—HLFE
7.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. BXEREREEBEREER @
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mENE & E R (E)
Liquidity risk tables MENE € B b5l &
Carrying
Weighted amount
average More than 1 More than 2 Total at 31st
effective year but less  year but less  undiscounted December
interest rate  Within 1 year  than 2 years  than 5 years cash flows ®+ZAH
IETY or on demand —ENE MENE B EqF=
BRFHE —ENFHEEK BRMER BRAERN  RERELE ZREEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BAlk FHET T FHL T THET
2007 e S
Non-derivative financial Ffii4&mM&E
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 R H R - 70,623 = = 70,623 70,623
Convertible loan notes TRRENER 9.75 - = 98,000 98,000 75,878
70,623 - 98,000 168,623 146,501
2006 “ETRE
Non-derivative financial Ffii4&mM&E
liabilities
Trade and other payables &5 R H R = 61,451 = = 61,451 61,451
Bank overdraft RITEX 17.75 18 = = 18 18
61,469 - - 61,469 61,469
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL

SEGMENTS

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently
organised into six (2006: four) operating divisions — agro-
conservation, bio-energy, banking and finance systems
integration services, software solutions for banks and the
public sector, IT management and support and real estate

consultancy service.

Principal activities are as follows:

Agro-conservation

Bio-energy

Banking and finance
systems integration
services

Software solutions for
banks and the public
sector

IT management and
support

Real estate consultancy
service

Agricultural cultivation and land
conservation

Cultivation of raw materials for the bio-
energy industry

Provision of system integration,
software development, engineering,
maintenance and professional outsourcing
services for the banking and finance,
telecommunications and public sector
clients

Provision of software solutions for the
banking, e-commerce and public sectors
with a business focus on e-business
operations and online marketplaces

Provision of IT management and support
services to small and medium-sized
property agents

Provision of real estate consultancy
services for the Shanghai property market

In determining the Group’'s geographical segments,

90

revenues are attributed to the segments based on the

location of the customers, and assets are attributed to the
segments based on the location of the assets.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007 BHE-_TT+tF+-_A=1+—HLFE
8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 8. EBRihED 3B @
SEGMENTS (continued)
(i) BUSINESS SEGMENTS (i) EX VR
The following tables present revenue, result and TRENAKEEB DI ZWA ~ FER
certain asset, liability and expenditure information ETEE - aBERAXER -

for the Group's business segments.

Banking and Software solutions
finance systems for banks and IT management
integration services the public sector and support Real estate
Agro-conservation Bio-energy EOUET! RERLBEHRA ERMK consultancy service Consolidated
RERE R FAERRE ERCEBBATR EERE BHEBRRH Ga

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
SRREE CRRAF CRRLE CTTAE ZELE CTINE ZPVLE CTINEF ZOVLE TEAF CRRLE ITNF ZRBLE ETF
HK$'000  HKS000 ~ HKS'000  HK$000 ~ HK$'000  HKS000 ~ HK$'000  HK$000 ~HKS'000  HK$000 ~ HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$O000

tén TEn f#x ThT | fEx TEr  fEx  TEr  FEx  TEr | TEx  TEn | TEn  TEn

TURNOVER BEE
Salestoexternal  WHPEF
oustomers fEtiZ8HE - - - - | eseat| 51867 572 644 M2 340 | 5617|2789 | T2282| 58740
RESULT 5
Segmentresults  AFFE 12,703 - 3,806 - (1399 (1.991) 27 53 (5,799) 1433 4,715 (2828)| 14,262 (8,850)
Unallocated income  AAEKA 2185 9,785
Unallocated APETM
expenses (31,882)]  (12.543)

Impaiment loss ~~ EREE

recognised in HEEE

respect of goodwil - - - - - - - - (12112 - (21.999) - (o) -
Finance costs BANAK (1842) (25)
Loss before tavation BHEIEE (36,048)]  (11,633)
Income tax FEH (sxt)

(expense) credit %% (1209) 1642
Lossfortheyear ~ ¥EEE (37.257)  (9991)
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For the year ended 31st December 2007 BHE-_ZTT+tF+-_A=1+—HLFE
8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 8. EBREDI @

SEGMENTS (continued)
()  BUSINESS SEGMENTS (Continued) (i)  REIH ()

Banking and finance ~ Software solutions for

systems integration banks and [T management
services the public sector and support Real estate
Agro-conservation Bio-energy VL RTRARERSI L consultancy service Consolidated
RERE L34 FRERRR filibd N0 SV ERRYR BHEBERR Ba

007 .06 | w00 a6 207 06 | 2000 206 207 06 2000 206 207 06
CERCE -2 CRBLE C3%cE CEEBCE CITAG CRBEE 336G CEECE CITNE CRRLE CITNE CEEME C3nAf
HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSO0  WKSOOD  HKSDOD  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD - HKSWOD  HKSO0  HKSO00  HKSOOO
TEr TEr TR TEr  TEm Tz fEx Tz TEx  TEr | TEm  TEr . TR TEn

ASSETS it
Segment assels AR 364,883 - 43m - 98,238 102,112 i 150 25 18408 9,002 36976 | 516,19 156,646
Unallocated FAELE
corporate assels 4 455( 8278
Total assels BB 50749 | 239,399
LIABILITIES 8f
Seqmentlcbiies  $38 (1%) - ) - owam| eom| ol | e ose| gee|  pag| wem| @
Unallocated comporate ~~ #3F (%
liabilties af (147490 (100%)
Total liabltes BlgE (195.399)  (68.407)
Other seqment information £/67 52
Cash and bank balances ;AR SEE
includedinsegment  ZEER
assels kit 152 - 2,151 - 67,21 56,462 5 2 i B 256 105 69,798 56,592
Unallocated amounts ~~ #AE2E 314 %
12939 56,630
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements o 44 B8R T HiEE

For the year ended 31st December 2007 BE_ZTT+tF+_A=1+—HILFE
8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 8. HEBKkihEnIuwm

SEGMENTS (Continued)

(i) BUSINESS SEGMENTS (Continued) (i) B oE ()

Banking and Software solutions
finance systems for banks and
integration services the public sector [T management Real estate
Agro-conservation Bio-energy FOVET ] FHRAREHRA and support consultancy service Consolidated
RERE EHRE EEHE kA 4 Y ES BHRERDLE FHEBERS fa

2007 206 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 207 206 2007 2006
SRRtE DR CRRtE REGE IBME BTE RReE IERE CRRtE IR IEME 3R B4R IR
HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSODD  HK00D  HKPODD  HKS'O0D  HKSOD0 - HKS'000  HKS0D0 - HKS'000  HKBODD  HKE'00D  HKS000
thn  TAn | fén  TEn | fAn  TAr | fér  Ten | fén  ThEn | tEm  TEn | ftAm  TEn

Pledged ine deposis ~~ FARFEEL
included n v
segment assels B - - - - S| theM - - - - - - S| theM
Depreciaion and TERES
amortisation 2,054 - 107 - 304 1189 - - 676 12 n 159 3594 1469
Unéllocated amounts FILEE 22 18
3,896 1617
Loss on disposalof HEHE
plantand Ry
eninen 5 - - - - - () . . . ol @ | m
Unalocated amounts AAEEE (16] -
(1) (191)
Capital expenditure BABS 193 - 6,675 - % 4 - - - 12 416 390 1515 506
Unéllocated amounts FILEE ol 3
8402 537
B debs iecty BREE
witen of 5k - - - - - - - - 404 - - - 404 -
Unallocated amounts FAREE 216 -
45 :
Ipairment ossof B2
wlsted iR
avlable-orsele ZHEER
nvestment
- inallocaed -RHEEE
amounis - - - - - - - - - - - - - 3200
Impéirment loss ecogrised 2GR
i respect of ade Bl
receivables hBER - - - - 1,706 m - - - - 590 2%5 2.2% 528
Impaiment loss recognised AEF/ZE
i respectof e
Inanglole assels HERR - - - - - - - - 1173 - - - 11713 -
(Gain on isposal of HEHE
plant and equipment Rk s 93
- inalocaed -4
anounts - - - - - - - - - - - - {30 (400)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements o %4 B8R & HaT

For the year ended 31st December 2007 HE-_ZTT+LHF+-_A=+—HILFE
8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 8. EBRi#ED I @
SEGMENTS (continued)
(i) GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (i)  HESE
The following table present revenue and certain T§§E§IJ$%@5WE%%ZWA&%:‘:;§
asset and expenditure information for the Group’s ERFX AR -

geographical segments.

Hong Kong Elsewhere in the PRC Laos Consolidated
ik HEEthiE £ &8
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

$BLE -TTAE CZBERLE -ITAF ZBtE -IEAE ZERLE -—ITNE
HK$'000  HK$000 ~ HK$'000  HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$000 — HK$000  HK$000
TET T TET TEL TET TEL TET T

Segment revenue AHYA
Sales to external customers ~ ANFEF

ez HE 572 540 71,680 58,200 = = 72,252 58,740
Segment assets PHEE 4,629 86,936 | 507,826 152,463 8,294 - | 520749| 239,399

Other segment information ~ Ef 2 HBER
Capital expenditure BARX 886 31 7,516 506 = - 8,402 537
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements o 44 B8R T HiEE

For the year ended 31st December 2007 BHE-_TT+tF+-_A=1+—HLFE

9. TURNOVER AND OTHER OPERATING 9. EXRBRHMEE W

INCOME
Turnover represents invoiced value of sales, net of returns, EXBEREEEER(EHNREE  HNREER
discounts allowed and sales taxes where applicable and (fniE A )) B2 AT 4R L T B 5 it A = b 2= BB RS AR 7%
providing computer technology and real estate consultancy CBREE RNFERAZWALT :
services. Revenues recognised during the year are as
follows:
2007 2006
—EFLE ZTER
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET T
Turnover SR
Sale of goods HEEMm 43,247 34,181
Rendering of computer R T A AT R 7%
technology services 23,388 21,770
Rendering of real estate TR 5 b E A o AR 75
consultancy services 5,617 2,789
72,252 58,740
Other operating income E b g g W
Interest income FEKA 1,987 547
Over-provision of business tax BEFE
in previous years BN B A = 195
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment HEBRE &R #H 2 W 30 400
Government grants XA #78 B 158 401
Exchange gain TE W 2= 3,765 =
Consultancy service income JB 1 AR 75 Mk 8,000 =
Management service income 18 RS W A 7,467 =
Sundry income MIEA 357 82
21,764 1,625
Total revenues WA %8 94,016 60,365
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

BE-TRLF+-AS+—ALEE

10. PROFIT (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 10. &= 5 )
2007 2006
—ETEHF ZETRE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Profit (loss) from operations has been R (BHR) Bk
arrived at after charging:
Auditor’s remuneration %2R0 B
— Current year —REE 800 850
— Overprovision for previous years —BEFEBERE (25) =
775 850
Amortisation of intangible assets I & B o 2,571 97
Bad debts directly written off HEMEE R 4,257 =
Costs of inventories sold and services BEEHTFE RATIEHEARSE
rendered Z R 57,546 46,069
Depreciation e 1,285 1,520
Directors’ emoluments (Note 15) BEEMe (HF15) 4,588 6,077
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HEFEERAREEIE
intangible assets 1,173 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HEHEMRBRERREEE
trade receivables 2,296 528
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary s — B A R E AL 2 EE 1 -
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment LEMEREEEEZES 71 151
Payments under operating leases BT i R F L T ERIE
in respect of land and buildings 3,690 2,328
Staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments) B IHRA (FEIEESHE)
(Note 14) (HiaE14) 18,061 16,233
Share-based payment expenses R 1 1~ 3R 32
(excluding staff and directors) (TEEREERES) 17,217 801
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements o 44 B8R T HiEE

For the year ended 31st December 2007 BHE-_TT+tF+-_A=1+—HLFE
11. FINANCE COSTS 11, BERAR
2007 2006
—EELE ZZTRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Interest expenses on: FEFAZ :
— bank overdrafts and borrowings wholly —RITEZRARAFA
repayable within five years BHERZBR - 1
— obligations under finance leases —REHEAE - 24
— effective interest expenses on —AIREREE
convertible loan notes ERA B
(Note 27) (KiaE27) 1,842 -
1,842 25
P
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) 12. FrEHixH (&)
2007 2006
ZETEE ZETRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B ERTSE
- current —RNER 1,200 784
— under(over) provision in prior years —BAFEREBETE GBERE) 9 (2,267)
1,209 (1,483)
Deferred tax (Note 28) BRIETIE (M7 #£28) = (159)
1,209 (1,642)
(i) Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for in (i) FR R 5% WA {8 4F [ 49 3 (S IE AR B R A
the consolidated financial statements as there was WU A B TS 3R 3% 3 4 L B S B S B A D
no estimated assessable profit derived from both & o
years.
(ii) Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at (ii) P H fth BE#E = BT EE A4 2 B I8 BIl3Z A8 A
the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. ERERBBTHETE -
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

12.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

In accordance with the relevant regulations,
approvals from relevant local tax bureaus and
Foreign Enterprise Income Tax Law in the PRC,
two subsidiaries operating in the PRC are entitled
to exemption from PRC income tax in the first two
years from the first profit-making year, followed by a
50% reduction of PRC income tax for the next three
years and thereafter, preferential treatments which
are subject to the relevant law and regulation.

In accordance with the relevant regulations for
Foreign Enterprise Income Tax Law in the PRC,
one subsidiary was taxed at 27% (2006: 27%) and
another at the domestic rate of 33% (2006: 33%).

On 16th March 2007, the PRC promulgated
the Law of the People’'s Republic of China on
enterprise income tax (the “New Law”). On 6th
December 2007, the state council of the PRC
issued Implementation Regulations of the New
Law. Pursuant to the New Law and Implementation
Regulations, the enterprise income tax for both
domestic and foreign-invested enterprises will
be unified at 25% effective from 1st January
2008. There will be a transitional period for the
PRC subsidiaries that are currently entitled to
preferential tax treatments granted by the relevant
tax authorities. PRC subsidiaries currently subject
to an enterprise income tax rate lower than 25%
will continue to enjoy the lower tax rate and be
gradually transitioned to the new unified rate of 25%
within five years after 1st January 2008. The tax rate
applicable to the PRC subsidiaries are subject to
the approval by the tax authority.

GREEN GLOBAL RESOURCES LIMITED #&IRHRERERD A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements o %4 B3R & HaT

BE-TRLF+-AS+—ALEE

12. FEHSZEH (ER)@®

(iii)

(iv)

RIBEEBRA - T HBEHKE 24X R P
BINEDEMERZE  AEERERHE
REEE S 2 KB 2 R AR & & 7 5 E
SAEMFERRTBEMSEHR  WAARER
=FBERRB0%TEMGSH  MERKZ
HBEBUNZ A RERFORRMES o

REBEPEIIBELCRMAEREZEBRE
— BB RBTR2%( ZETREF
27%) ZREGH - 5 —HAIK3B% (= F
TN 33%) 2T BRI o

R-ZZFZELF=HA+/"A  RERMPE
ARKAMBEERETE(FBOE]) - B
“ETFE+ - ARHE FEEKERMG
FBOE B SEIRD]  IRIBHBOE R H B 5 R
- B_FTFNF-HA—BE HEFEZ
CERIIELRZEEMBRTEEKE —
7325% - R Z R HBRGKER TEE
RGBT EBARMSESBEE
H o IR R E N 26% 0 KPS B0 R B Bt
Reh BB RRGAIEEESBRED
X WHR_FTENF—A—BEFERA
B BB EF G B E256% ° BRI T E
B /B8 2 B) oz Bt 3R R A phy A A A R L
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements o ,.R/E.\EM%%E%%M\TEI‘ Q

a—
For the year ended 31st December 2007 HE-_ZTT+F+-_A=+—HILFE
12.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDITY (Continuedy ~ 12. PS8t (3 ) )
The income tax expense (credit) for the year can be FEMAFSMIH (K L) BiRE Wk 2 BB A&
reconciled to the loss before taxation per the consolidated BEERNAT -
income statement as follows:
2007 2006
—EEtE —TENRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET T
Loss before taxation b 4 A1 5 18 (36,048) (11,633)
Tax credit at rates applicable to losses REHEBXRERER
in the countries concerned BEFHEZHBER (6,444) (8,026)
Tax effect of income not subject to tax BARMBAZ R L (2,543) (1,782)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible PRI HMBAZ 2 BB &
for tax purposes 10,228 10,452
Utilisation of previously AL ARERBEEE
unrecognised tax losses (41) (19)
Under (over) provision in previous years  BAFEHRBEETE (BEEE) 9 (2,267)
Income tax expense (credit) for the year — EE S8 H (%) 1,209 (1,642)
Details of deferred taxation in Note 28. EIER BB R M 528 -
13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. EREE
The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share are EREARBEERNIBEBERAAAERFEEAR
based on the Group’s loss attributed to the equity holders 1l 7K 5= [ 548 4937,679,000/8 L ( — BT /N 4 ¢
of the Company of approximately HK$37,679,000 (2006: 9,991,000 70) 5T & -
HK$9,991,000).
The basic loss per share is based on the weighted average EREAEBEEDBEFANEZRTEARMNETS
number of 902,344,000 (2006: 606,667,000) ordinary £7902,344,000% ( ZZ = /X F : 606,667,0000%)
shares in issue during the year. FTH
No diluted loss is presented for the year ended 31st ARTEERERSBATBRRERZRGEREH
December 2007 and 2006 as the exercise of the share EETLERITFERNFIA=+—HIM
options and the conversion of the convertible loan notes B E 2 G REBR D - Bt & 2 5 5%/ 85
would result in a decrease in loss per share for both years. EzSR#EEESE -
99
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

14.

STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

No.’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements e

BHE

TR B HRRM

ST+ E+-_A=t+—ALLEE

14 BEIRA (TEEESHE)

2007 2006

—ETtEE —TETNF

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET T

Wages and salaries ITERYS® 15,434 14,020
Retirement benefit schemes contribution & ¥R 4& Fll 51 2 £ 7% 1,869 1,611
Share-based payments ERENEN 758 602
18,061 16,233

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong operate defined contribution
schemes which are available to qualified employees. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the subsidiaries in independently administered funds.
Monthly contributions made by the subsidiaries are
calculated based on certain percentages of the applicable
payroll costs or fixed sums as stipulated under the relevant
requirements, as appropriate.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in
the PRC, the subsidiaries of the Group in this country
participate in respective government retirement benefit
schemes (the “Schemes”) whereby the subsidiaries are
required to contribute to the Schemes to fund the retirement
benefits of the eligible employees. Contributions made to
the Schemes are calculated based on certain percentages
of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the
requirements in the PRC. The relevant authorities of the
PRC are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to the retired employees. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the Schemes is to pay the ongoing
required contributions under the Schemes.

The retirement benefit schemes contribution represent
gross contributions by the Group to the Schemes operated
by the relevant authorities of the PRC and the defined
contribution schemes operated in Hong Kong.

Details of the Company’'s share options granted to the
employees of the Group are set out in note 29.

GREEN GLOBAL RESOURCES LIMITED #&IRHRERERD A

AEBEENBLARHERARERANTEHS
EREEZ2M -FEERABYEEESRHA
HEMBAR<EENH - HBARSARER
FMFESzE T ADLEREREIRERAER
BRR B E SRR (RIERME) °

RETEEMEERZAN  AEEZFEKEA
B MBBBR KB E ([ ZEE])
MEARARKAZETEMERER  REER
BEZERARBMERES - AR S EEL 2 H#
AR PBEAPIRI B2 ERFMEX 2ETED
Eat& -+FBEEHERARRARKESESXMNEE
BARESER ARERZEAE2E-—RERR
B ZEREIMRE BN -

BAREAERFEARERNTEERE RS MR
ZREERRBRE M Z AERTEEL 2
AR -

ARABRTASEREBRE ZFBHNME
29
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements e ,.R/E.\Eﬂ%iﬁﬂﬁﬁi‘

—
For the year ended 31st December 2007 BHE-_TT+tF+-_A=1+—HLLFE
15. DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR 15, EERaREEAEME
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ERNEENNE(ZEZRF : LR)ES
eight (2006: seven) directors were as follows: Z e s BIEIET
For the year ended 31st December 2007 HE_ZT+F+-_A=+T—BLFE
Salaries Employer’s
allowances contribution
and other to pension
benefits  Discretionary scheme  Share-hased
Fees e 20 bonus Bhe payments Total
ag REfEH MERL  HEELEX EOLE 4%
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Th T T T T Tn
Executive Directors 47E%
M. Tse Michael Nam AmERE(R-TRLE
(appointed as a Chairman on ZRTZREZfATRE
12th February 2007 and re-designated  RA=FZ+%£=F—-A
as Chief Executive Officer on AL ATHER)
1st March 2007) - 2,29 - 1 201 2,506
Mr. Chan Tze Ngon RBEE(RZTTNE
(resigned on 1t March 2008) ZE-RE) - 991 - 12 - 1,003
M. Tang Kin Hung B (R2ERLE
(resigned on 1t March 2007) ZR-REf) - 149 = 2 = 151
Independent non-executive Directors Bi#{TEZ
M. Lim Yew Kong, John Lim Yew Kong, John‘E4
(appointed on 12th February 2007)  (M=FE+LE
“AT-REZR) 132 - 75 - 75 282
Mr. Puongpun Sananikone Puongpun Sananikone
(appointed on 1st July 2007 FEMRZTRLE
and re-designated executive tA-BEZER
director on st March 2008) RZEZNF=F-A
AEANTES) 75 - 75 - 121 a1
M. Tai Benedict ERE(RZFBNE
(resigned on 1t March 2008) ZR-BEf) 150 = 75 = = 25
M. Fu Yan Yan BRRLE(R=F5tE
(resigned on 30th June 2007) AR=TREHE) 75 - - - - 75
Ms. Wang Xi Ling IARRT(RZERLE
(resigned on 30th June 2007) ~A=THET) 75 - - - - 75
507 3434 225 25 397 4588
No directors waived or agreed to waive any BEEENgE—_TTs+aR_S=~5 101
emoluments during the two years ended 31st +ZA=+— A LEMEFERESKRZ K
December 2007 and 2006. EERME -
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

15. DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS

BHE

15. EEREREBAEMNE @

SERLE+-AS+—ALEE

(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEME ()
For the year ended 31st December 2006 BE_ZT F+-A=1THLFE
Salaries Retirement
allowances benefit
and other schemes
benefits contribution Share-based
Fees FE RS 1 B EH payments Total
ng HbEH HEER U LE ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr ThT TR T Thr
Executive Directors HiEs
Mr. Chan Tze Ngon Riats = 2686 12 = 269
Mr. Wu Emmy REGAE(RZFENE
(resigned on 10th October 2006) TATAR) - 2123 10 - 2133
Mr. Tang Kin Hung BREAE(RFERE
(resigned on 26th May 2006 and RAZTAREE
reappointed on 10th October 2006) BR-ZFTRE
TRTREENZf) - 637 8 o 645
Independent non-executive Directors ~ BiLFHITES
M. Lo Siew Kiong, John EZRRE(R-TRNE
(resigned on 23rd June 2006) NAZTZRER) 9% - - - 9%
M. Fu Yan Yan BRmEE 175 - - 3% 209
Ms. Wang Xi Ling IARAL 150 - - 3 184
Mr. Tai Benedict HUEAE(R-E5/E
(appointed on 23rd June 2006) NAZTZREZ() 79 - - 3% 113
499 5,446 30 102 6,077
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements o 44 B8R T HiEE

For the year ended 31st December 2007 BHE-_TT+tF+-_A=1+—HLFE
15. DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR 15. EBEREGREBAEMNE @
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
(b) Senior management’s emoluments (b) EREEAEME
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments $%£%%%$ﬁ_{§§@%$@ﬁjﬁﬁ%§;
in the Group, two (2006: three) were directors of $(:$§,—\$ =L fﬁ%zm%ﬁ"ﬁ
the Company whose emoluments are set out in the R EX - ﬁéiggﬁij—:ﬂ S
above. For the year ended 31st December 2007, the FIJJ:EE’ CHBZERRSFAL(ZFE
emoluments of the three (2006: two) highest paid NE BB ZMEeWT

individuals were as follows:

2007 2006
—_EEtH —ETREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TAT
Salaries, allowances e SRR REAMET
and other benefits 2,031 1,401
Retirement benefit RONAE B ET S 5K
schemes contribution 24 24
Share-based payment B& 17 15 3K 404 -
2,459 1,425
Their emoluments fall within the following bands: BEZMENFATEHE :
Number of individuals
AE
2007 2006
—_EFLHF ZETREF
Emoluments band < & &
Nil — HK$1,000,000 Z AT E1,000,0008 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001/ 7T £2,000,000/%8 7T 1 -
3 2
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For the year ended 31st December 2007 BE_ZTTLF+_A=1+—HILFE
15. DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 15, EERSHREEAEME @

MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

(¢)  No emoluments have been paid by the Group to (c) é_& E_FTLFR=F g,—\ F+=A
other directors or the five highest paid individuals :"'f_ Eiffgm ' $$m%rﬁ]jﬁ~ﬁﬂ§
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group ERRERBHAIXNME  FRESF

. . .
or as compensation for loss of the office during the A MARREE 2 REHARKRE
Ny Ry [
two years ended 31st December 2007 and 2006. Bz B8 -
i an
16. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. BWERSE

Furniture,

fixtures and

office

Leasehold equipment

Nursery improvements & BT Motor
farm HE KER vehicles Total
[:] MEEE FYNEE RE o)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT THT FHT AT
COST BAE
At 1st January 2006 RZZEE F—A—H - 1,657 20,751 2,156 24,464
Exchange realignment i 5 B - 2 68 26 96
Additions R - 347 190 - 537
Acquired on acquisition Wk — P A R B

of a subsidiary %N - - 600 - 600
Disposals e - (505) (5,614) (1,015) (7.134)
At 31st December 2006 RZEEAE+=A=+—H - 1,401 15,995 1,167 18,563
Exchange realignment [ 5 3% - 18 139 49 206
Additions R 6,400 688 512 527 8,127
Disposals e - (189) (193) (280) (662)
At 31st December 2007 RZET+E+-A=+—H 6,400 1,918 16,453 1,463 26,234
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements o %4 B #R % HizE

For the year ended 31st December 2007 BHE-_TT+tF+-_A=1+—HLFE

16. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 16. BBEREE @

Furniture,
fixtures and
office
Leasehold equipment
Nursery improvements i BE Motor
farm HE RER vehicles Total
HE ES ] BAER RE am
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET TET THEL TET THL
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ERMERHE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1st January 2006 RZZEE E—HA—H - 1,336 19,325 1,887 22,548
Exchange realignment [ 5 3% - - 38 19 57
Provided for the year FRERE - 174 1,196 150 1,520
Acquired on acquisition of e — B A AR
a subsidiary G RRINE - - 42 - 42
Eliminated on disposals B R SE - (380) (5,588) (1,015) (6,983)
At 31st December 2006 RZFE E+-A=1+—H - 1,130 15,013 1,041 17,184
Exchange realignment [ 5 3% - 4 81 41 126
Provided for the year FREE 107 485 519 174 1,285
Eliminated on disposals B R SH - (173) (138) (280) (591)
At 31st December 2007 RZFZE+&+=-A=1+—H 107 1,446 15,475 976 18,004
CARRYING AMOUNT REEE®E
At 31st December 2007 RZFZE+&+=-A=1+—H 6,293 472 978 487 8,230
At 31st December 2006 RZFE E+-A=1+—H - 271 982 126 1,379

The above items of plant and equipment are depreciated UNEBmEREZEEE NEREEATEERGTEN

on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum: =
Nursery farm 10% EE 10%
Leasehold improvements 33',% or over the lease HEMEEE 33" %K HEH -
terms, whichever is shorter ARG H A%
Furniture, fixtures and 20% to 33':% B -BEEER 20% £ 33":%
office equipment WAERME
Motor vehicles 331,% TE 33'3%
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

17. DEFERRED PLANTATION EXPENDITURE

BE_ZTTLF+_A=1+—HILFE

17. EEBEMX

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements o %4 B8R & HaT

2007 2006
—EFLE —TENRFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
COST MAE
At 1st January R—HA—H - -
Additions NE 33,541 =
At 31st December R+=—A=+—H 33,541 =
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION g1
At 1st January R—HA—H - -
Provision for the year and FARER
transfer to biological assets (Note 21) EAEYEE (K:E21) 541 =
At 31st December R+=—A=+—8 541 =
CARRYING AMOUNT REEE
At 31st December R+=—A=+—8 33,000 =

The deferred plantation expenditure is amortised on a
straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives of the

relevant plants of 30 years.
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-
For the year ended 31st December 2007 BE_ZTT+tF+_A=1+—HILFE
18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. BEEE
Collection and
cultivation
rights Computer
&R software Total
IEERE TR mEm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHET
COST BAE
At 1st January 2006 KT F—H—H - = =
Additions NE - 1,796 1,796
At 31st December 2006 R=ZETRE+=A=+—H - 1,796 1,796
Exchange realignment TR - 124 124
Acquired on acquisition of W REHT B A RIS
subsidiaries PR AR 167,156 - 167,156
At 31st December 2007 RZZEZEELFE+_A=+—H 167,156 1,920 169,076
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION R RRHE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1st January 2006 RZZEEF—HA—H - - -
Exchange realignment RIS - 3 3
Provided for the year FNEE = 97 97
At 31st December 2006 R=ZETRE+=A=+—H - 100 100
Exchange realignment IE 5,38 - 7 7
Impairment loss recognised in the year FRERREEE = 1,173 1,173
Provided for the year FRRHE 1,931 640 2,571
At 31st December 2007 RZZEZEELFE+_A=+—H 1,931 1,920 3,851
CARRYING AMOUNT REEH
At 31st December 2007 RZZEEELFE+=_A=+—H 165,225 - 165,225
At 31st December 2006 R=ZETREF+=A=+—H - 1,696 1,696
The above intangible assets have finite useful lives and is NEEREEREEGEERFERGEH  WIKERE
amortised on a straight-line basis over twenty nine to forty B Z+NFEEMFSERE -
Six years.
The directors of the Company have reviewed the carrying RARAEZER_ZEZLFT+_A=+—HEH
values of the Group’s intangible assets as at 31st REBECZELEE  URRBEMAHEERKTK
December 2007. The directors of the Company considered A e B ERI AR REREBE - BT &S G B854
that it is unlikely that the computer software will have any 11730008 T2 BE A S BE A ©
future value in use and therefore the carrying amount of
this computer software in the amount of approximately 107

HK$1,173,000 was fully impaired.

Annual Report 2007 £ & GREEN GLOBAL RESOURCES LIMITED #&RHERERAE



For the year ended 31st December 2007

19. GOODWILL AND IMPAIRMENT TESTING

BUBHRME

BE-TRLF+-AS+—ALEE

19. BEKBERENA

ON GOODWILL
(a) GOODWILL (a) ®™E
HK$'000
FHET
COST RAE
At 1st January 2006 R=ZTZ~FE—H—H 12,772
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary 1 B — P PR B8 A R IR TS AR AR 33,033
At 31st December 2006 REZERF+=-A=+—H 45,805
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries W B BT /B8 A R IR FTAS AR 151,839
At 31st December 2007 R=ZZBLF+=A=+—H 197,644
IMPAIRMENT BIE
At 1st January 2006, 31st December 2006 and RZTT F—H—H" TREF
1st January 2007 +=A EJF*E&Z%?%JCi*H*El -
Impairment loss recognised in the year FAERREEE 40,771
At 31st December 2007 R=ZZBLF+=—A=+—H 40,771
CARRYING AMOUNT RE£HE
At 31st December 2007 R=ZZBLF+=—A=+—H 156,873
At 31st December 2006 R=ZETBRF+=—A=+—H 45,805

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill
are disclosed in note 19(b).
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a—
For the year ended 31st December 2007 BE_ZTT+tF+_A=1+—HILFE
19. GOODWILL AND IMPAIRMENT TESTING 19. BZ R EZEFERE @
ON GOODWILL (continued)
(b)  IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL (b) EEEEAR
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill REITRERH Mﬁé}‘19(a?ﬁﬁ§}i§ﬂ2?ﬁﬁ
set out in Note 19(a) has been allocated to four %Eﬁﬁﬂélﬂﬂfﬁ(ﬁéiim TR-ET
individual cash generating units. The carrying ‘tfﬁ—'—:ﬂ\:—*—__a ' ﬁgzﬁﬁﬁéﬁ%@
amounts of goodwill (net of accumulated (kR REVAERBR) ZATHRE S
impairment losses) as at 31st December 2007
allocated to these are as follows:
2007 2006
—EELE ZZETREFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET FEx
IT management and support: BABBEERTE
— Acacia Asia Partners Limited — Acacia Asia Partners Limited
("Acacia”) and its subsidiary ([Acacial) K& EHi & A &
(“Acacia Group”) ([Acaciat® |) - 12,772
Real estate consultancy service: FEHEBEBRS
— Grand Panorama Limited — Grand Panorama Limited
(“GP”) and its subsidiary ([GPJ) R EHKI B A A
(“GP Group”) (TGP&E ) 5,034 33,033
Agro-conservation: BERE :
— Huge Value Development — Huge Value Development
Limited (“Huge Value”) Limited ([Huge Value ) 29,578 -
— Quest Asia Development — Quest Asia Development
Limited (“Quest Asia”) Limited ([Quest Asial) 114,461 -
Bio-energy: EMREIR
— Lao Agro-Promotion Limited — Lao Agro-Promotion Limited
(“Lao-Agro”) ([Lao-Agrol) 7,800 =
156,873 45,805
109
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Noftes fo the Consolidated Financial Statements

19. GOODWILL AND IMPAIRMENT TESTING
ON GOODWILL (continued)

(b)

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
(Continued)

During the year ended 31st December 2007,
the Group recognised impairment losses of
approximately HK$40,771,000 in relation to the
goodwill arising from the acquisition of Acacia
Group and GP Group.

IT management and support

In view of the operating landscape for Acacia Group
business has become increasingly difficult, with the
PRC Government's imposition of austerity measures
and higher operating requirements for brokerages.
In view of the plunging number of transactions and
negative prospects, the directors of the Company
is seriously assessing the future viability of Acacia
and considers that the carrying amount of the
goodwill arising from acquisition of Acacia in the
amount of approximately HK$12,772,000 was fully
impaired for the year ended 31st December 2007.

GREEN GLOBAL RESOURCES LIMITED #&IRHREREIRD A

BHE

19.

e B HRRM

ST+ E+-A=t+—ALLEE

(b)

BERBEREIS @

8 R E A ()

HE_ZTTL+FE+_A=+—HIFE
RN ANEEKEAcaciakE B RGPE E
FTEEZE - #R#%40,771,0008 T 2
WEETE o

B EER &

R BT ST A 4D 1T EEBE AT R B IR i R 5R
ESKLEPIR - B {fAcaciakE B EBH
KEIRBATRE - ERRHHEKRNET
f& - MERSERA  ARAREZEFRIEESE
T fhAcacia R KRB ZEReE 1 - WRER
HE_ZTT+FE+_A=+—HIFE
W EAcaciaFTEA B ERE S EL
12,772,000 L 2 BURE ©
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19. GOODWILL AND IMPAIRMENT TESTING
ON GOODWILL (continued)

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
(Continued)

Real estate consultancy service

In view of the current and future business prospects
and financial situation of GP Group, the current slow
down in the property agency market in the PRC,
the stringent austerity measures that have been
imposed by the PRC government, and the future
capital requirements of GP. With the current focus
on agri-business, the directors of the Company
considers that it is in the interests of the Company
and the shareholders as a whole to reallocate its
resources towards the agri-business activities of
the Group, which the directors of the Company
consider to have better future prospects, therefore
on 3rd March 2008, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement for the disposal of GP
Group for a consideration of RMB4,000,000. With
reference to the sales considerations, the directors
of the Company consider that the carrying amount
of goodwill arising from acquisition of GP Group in
the amount of approximately HK$27,999,000 was
recognised as impairment loss for the year ended
31st December 2007.

Agro-conservation and Bio-energy

The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that, based on the business valuation reports for
Huge Value, Quest Asia and Lao-Agro as at 31st
December 2007 issued by Greater China Appraisal
Limited, an independent professional valuer, the
business values of these subsidiaries exceed
their carrying amount in the consolidated balance
sheet as at 31st December 2007 and therefore no
impairment loss is necessary.
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ca——

| 1]

BE-TRLF+-ASt+—ALEE

19.

(b)

BHEKHERENR @

8 R E R ()

= 1t EE BT AR 7

ZEECPEBMIBR R AKNERA = R
Mg - BB RIS E R W
- PERFEGEEN RSB AT
AKRGPHIRRES TR M EAEES
EBERELEBREREEL  AQRE
ERE héﬁ%$&Aﬁ%w%¥Em
ERENAEEREER  FAARAR
h%Z% 2z - At - R=ZZTENE=
A=0 A&EEFVEEHREAREBEAR
#4,000,0007C (H EGPEE - 2 HER
B ARREZTARAETREE=-ZTTLHF
T A=+t BLFEBKBEGPEEF
Fi2ﬁ§$E$%%N9%D%%ﬁ%
REBRERBAE -

BRERERLEYFER

NRIEERA  BREBYZEMHEME
ZIEERA T?F‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁHuge Value -
Quest AsiafLao-AgroR —ZEZ+F+—
A=t+—BzBEEMHERE  ZEHEBEA
RZAXEBERREE=-ZTLF+=A4
=t+—BZGRAEERBERPZEARME "
ML B AR RR (A &1 -
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20.

21.

112

BE_ZTTLF+_A=1+—HILFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements o %4 B8R & HaT

INVENTORIES 20. BE
2007 2006
—EFtE ZTTRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ExT T
Information technology products held BIEEE 2 EMBRER -
for resale, at cost B A 5,192 8,857
BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 21. £ EE
Saplings of
Licorice Salix Jatropha Total
HE b PR & k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT FHET FHET
At 1st January 2006, 31st RZZEZXF—HA—H"
December 2006 and 1st —EERFTA=+—H
January 2007 k=T +F—-HA—H - = - -
Transfer from amortisation of B E TS A A S 5
deferred plantation B (fE17)
expenditure (Note 17) 392 149 - 541
Additions NE = - 275 275
Changes in fair value less N ESBR A
estimated point-of-sale costs SHE BhRK A 6,079 1,611 3,565 11,255
At 31st December 2007 RZZETLF+_A=+—H 6,471 1,760 3,840 12,071
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

21.

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

a)

b)

Licorice is a bearer biological assets and is a
perennial Herb of the Febaceae family (a flowering
plant). Main roots of the Licorice can normally be
harvested in 3 to 4 years, and the remains of roots
re-establish themselves in the soil.

Salix is a bearer biological assets and is a medium
to large size deciduous tree. Salix are very cross-
fertile and numerous hybrids can occur, both
naturally and in cultivation. Salix will also take root
very readily from cuttings and can regenerate
themselves after harvest.

Saplings of Jatropha is a consumable biological
assets. Planted from seeds, they mature into
saplings within 3 to 4 months, ready to be sold for
transplantation as a whole. Jatropha saplings will
grow into Jatropha trees which will eventually bear
fruits for up to 30 years. The seeds inside the fruits
of the Jatropha contain high levels of oil which can
be extracted and processed into bio-diesel.

At 31st December 2007, the above biological assets
are immatured.

The fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs of
licorice, salix and jatropha is determined based
on the valuation report issued by Greater China
Appraisal Limited, an independent professional
valuer with reference to the most recent market
determined prices.
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21. EYEE @)

a)

HERLEMEMEE  BHTAEN(—
BEEEY) REFLEEAEY - HE
MERBEFANR=Z=WNFARKE - RHT
ZRBERLIBEPEH LR -

DUREEREYMEE  BHFREBFK-
HIEY IR E LR - A B A NEE
BEETHAREAmE - DT REA
TESREER - RUER IR AR R E
ERe

T A AR H AR I A ) B EE o R A e R
BERKGHER=2MMEA - HRAE
MR EERAE 2 o iR A 5= AR R A
% BRHFTTRENF - MEGEREFH
BFEBEREME - ATHERRIERKEY

Se0H o

R-BBEET-A=+—B Lk
AR RERNE -

RNFERHEE - DWRIRE 2 bt s
B DREB Y HEGEMEETE
BERABZEL ZHERSERSELHTS
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For the year ended 31st December 2007 HE-_ZTT+HF+-_A=+—HIFE
21. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 21. £ MEE @
d) The quantity and amount of agricultural produce is d) FA - BAFERGTHEHEMKATEZ
measured at fair value less estimated point-of-sale EESHERSETOT

costs during the year were as follows:

2007 2006

—EFTtE —TTREF
Quantity Amount Quantity Amount
HE &8 = G|
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiExT FAT
Licorice HE 433 tonslif 6,471 = =
Salix bl 9,167 tonsHa 1,760 - -
Saplings of Jatropha fE e E 150 mui 3,840 = =
12,071 -
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22.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

BHE

SERLE+-ASt—ALEE

22. AIHERE

Available-for-sale investments comprise: A ERERE
2007 2006
—_EFLHE ZEER
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Listed equity securities, at fair value FTRAES  RAFE
(Note b & c) (Hiatbkc) = 55,000
Unlisted equity securities, EEMRAE S - KA
at cost (Note d) (Hiatd) = 11,591
- 66,591
Notes: Hiet -

(b)

All available-for-sale investments were classified as current
assets and were disposed of during the year ended 31st
December 2007.

At 31st December 2006, the listed investments represented
7.48% investment in the share capital of ChinaCast
Communication Holdings Limited. The shares of the
company was listed on the Stock Exchange of Singapore.

In September 2006, the Group disposed half of the 14.96%
equity shareholdings in ChinaCast Communication Holdings
Limited to a director, Mr. Chan Tze Ngon, for a consideration
of SGD9,250,000.

In January 2007, the Group’'s shares in ChinaCast
Communication Holdings Limited were exchanged for
1,651,771 shares in ChinaCast Education Corporation
whose shares are listed on the Nasdag OTC Bulletin Board
in the United States of America. The Group subsequently
disposed of its 1,551,771 shares in ChinaCast Education
Corporation to an independent third party for a
consideration of HK$55 million in April 2007.

In October 2006, the Group entered into an agreement
to dispose of its entire shareholding in its unlisted equity
securities to an independent third party for a consideration
of RMB12,000,000, payable in four instalments. The
disposal was completed and the consideration was fully
received during the year ended 31st December 2007.
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(b)

PG RS R DA E RERBE
SEPLFH-AS+—ALEEHE

RZTZEARF+ZA=+—H ' EHREERN
ChinaCast Communication Holdings Limited
TAB%MRAR 2 R E o %N A Z IR FOFT 4K 7 55
G ETW e

RZTZERFNA AEBEREFRFREE
ifi &ChinaCast Communication Holdings
Limited 14.96% A # & K — = K E
9,250,000% 7T °

RZZT+F—F - AEELAFT#ZChinaCast
Communication Holdings Limitedf% 5 # Bt
1,651,771 ChinaCast Education Corporation
f& 15 + ChinaCast Education CorporationZ %
MREBMTERSIZGHEER ET - R
TRLFENA  AEEHEERE 21,551,771
f% ChinaCast Education Corporationf& s ¥ 58
M =77 » (855,000,000 T °

R-ZZ2RFTH AEERA—BBILF=
ﬁ’iﬁ el N ﬁ%*ﬁﬁx%ﬂiﬁf)
KRB/ ARK12,000,0007T © D4 A -

ﬁ%%lﬁaﬁé‘éﬁzi_??—t¢+zﬂz+*ﬂ

LEFE R - RETERZFE A BRE -
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For the year ended 31st December 2007 HE_ZTZT+tF+_A=1+—HILFE
23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. BESRHMEKFIE
2007 2006
—EFLE ZTTRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Trade receivables B 5 W RIE 69,024 63,925
Less: Impairment losses recognised B B ERREEE (43,876) (41,461)
25,148 22,464
Prepayment, deposit and EANRIE  Eek
other receivables H fth & 5K IE 7,263 20,353
Total trade and B5 Rk
other receivables H fth & WK IE 42 5E 32,411 42817
The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods AEE—MBETEFIVKREIBORTEZRFE
ranging from 30 days to 180 days which are subject to H - WHARERETESERE -
periodic review by management.
(a) The ageing analysis of the trade receivables at (a) REEH  HKREBAREEEEZES
the balance sheet date, net of impairment losses FEUBGRIBREIR DT T ¢
recognised was as follows:
2007 2006
—ETLE ZZEREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current to 90 days BIHRZ= 90K 18,902 15,766
91 days to 180 days 91 RE180K 2,600 2,775
181 days to 365 days 181K E 365K 3,477 2,776
Over 365 days 365K A E 169 1,147
25,148 22,464
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

BE-TRLF+-ASt+—ALEE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. EZ K H{tEUWFIE @)
(Continued)
(b)  The movements in provision for impairment losses (b) BIRKRFREREBEERGEZESHOT :
of trade receivables were as follows:
2007 2006
—EFLE ZTERF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
At 1st January Rn—HA—H 41,461 45,966
Exchange realignment b 58 & 119 55
Arising on acquisition of U ig — R B A &l = 625
a subsidiary mEE
Written off for the year F s - (4,915)
Eliminated on disposal of HE—HEHERR
a subsidiary M # s8R - (798)
Recognised during the year FANER 2,296 528
At 31st December R+=—A=+—8H 43,876 41,461
(c) At 31st December 2007 and 2006, the analysis (c) RZEE+LFER_TFENF+_RA=+—
of trade receivables that were past due but not H: @EERFRECESERKIES T
impaired are as follows: N 3
Past due but not impaired
Neither past AHERHEE
due nor
Total  impaired 91 to 180 181 to 365 1to2
K@ <90 days days days years
okl TR E <90X 91Z%180X%X 181%365% 122F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT TR TR TR TR
31st December 2007 “ZT+F+-A=1-A 25,148 14,438 5,581 1,483 3,477 169
31st December 2006 “ZEERF+-A=1-A 22,464 12,441 4,564 2,408 2,142 909
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s to the Consolidated Financial Statements o %4 8RR HTET

For the year ended 31st December 2007

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(c)

(Continued)

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired relate to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

The fair values of the Group’s trade and other
receivables at the balance sheet date approximated
to the corresponding carrying amounts due to their
short term maturities.

GREEN GLOBAL RESOURCES LIMITED #&IRERERER A A

BE

23.

ST+ E+-A=t+—ALLEE

—

B 5 Kk HEHMEWRKE @

3 4% 760 4 7T AR R (B 2 B 5 8 WO IR T B 4
MHBOELCERATPER -

BERMERREZE S EKRFIATIE—H
HEAKEREARFRERHZBIEFE
M- REBELR  EEEBHEXSEAR
TELKBELRERE AREEEREY
BEREBRAERDAT U T2EE - &
SERZEERT BB EMERGR

AEEZE S REMBKFIBLRERA
A MERAEERZATERBRER
BHIRE
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For the year ended 31st December 2007 BHE-_TT+tF+-_A=1+—HLFE

24. BANK BALANCES AND CASH/BANK 24. R{T&8KEE RITEX

OVERDRAFTS
2007 2006
—EFtHE ZETRE
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Bank balances and cash IRITAER RIS
- Pledged time deposits —BHEMATEHAEFER = 15,624
— Unpledged — A 31,553 16,723
Other time deposits with BARRIBHB A
original maturity of more =@EANREZ
than three months when acquired H i 7E Bi 17 K 41,386 39,907
Bank overdrafts RITEX = (18)
72,939 72,236
Less: Pledged time deposits A EEATE BHER = (15,624)
Other time deposits with EARRIEEA
a maturity of more than =EAREZ
three months when acquired H M E BiF K (41,386) (39,907)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 31,553 16,705
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

24,

BANK BALANCES AND CASH/BANK
OVERDRAFTS (continued)

Bank balances and cash/pledged time deposits/other
time deposits

At the balance sheet date, about 92% (2006: 90%) of the
balance of cash and cash equivalents was denominated in
RMB. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.

Bank balances and other time deposits and pledged bank
deposits carry interest at average market rates of 3.60%
(2006: 3.75%).

At 31st December 2006, pledged bank deposits represents
deposits pledged to banks to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group. The pledged bank deposits were
released during the year ended 31st December 2007.

Bank overdrafts

At 31st December 2007, there were no bank overdrafts. At
31st December 2006, the average effective interest rate of
bank overdrafts was approximately 17.75%.

The fair values of the pledged bank deposits, other time
deposits, bank overdrafts and bank balances at the
balance sheet date approximated to the corresponding
carrying amounts due to their short term maturities.

GREEN GLOBAL RESOURCES LIMITED #&IRHREREIRD A

's o the Consolidated Financial Statements e

BE

24.

e B HRRM

ST+ E+-A=t+—ALLEE

RITEBREES RITEX @
RERRERS CHEATHEN HHEHE
i

REER RERBSEEBMERTH2%IAA
REBFE(ZZERF :90%) - ARKILIEB A
HIEH o

BTG HMEHEREREERBITERRTF
BB B EI60%(ZFZTRF : 3.75%) 5T 8 °

RZBZXRE+-_A=+—0 EEARTER
ERMAKBERRITEEREMER TRITES
BERZER - EEMBOTERARBE_ZTETLF
TZA=+T—BLFEEHR -

SRITEX

R-ZBETZLE+ A=+ BYERTET - R
—EEXRE+-_A=+—H8 BTEIXZFHE
BRFNE L) BT 75% °

HREERRITER  EMEHFR  RITEX

RRITHEKONERANIS  HEREERZR
FEEKRESERE -
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For the year ended 31st December 2007 BHE-_TT+tF+-_A=1+—HLFE
25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. EZRHMEMNRIE
2007 2006
—EEtH —TETNRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET T
Trade payables B 5 ENRIA
— third parties —$£=5 1,198 2,011
— minority shareholders — D EARR 325 325
1,623 2,336
Accrued expenses and EEtER X
other payables H fth fE 5 518 69,100 59,115
70,623 61,451
The ageing analysis of the trade payables at the balance REER  BEZEMNFEZREDITAT ¢

sheet date was as follows:

2007 2006
—EFLE —ETTR
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Current to 90 days BIHERZ= 90K = 234
91 days to 180 days 91 RE180K - 114
181 days to 365 days 181K £ 365K 81 200
Over 365 days 365K A E 1,442 1,788
1,623 2,336
The fair values of the Group’s trade and other payables at REB 2B NEMENTBEBHNE AR E -
the balance sheet date approximated to the corresponding WMERNGEEB 2 AFEEAERTNSEMREES °

carrying amounts due to their short-term maturities.
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BE-TRLF+-AS+—ALEE

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. B
Number
of shares Amount
BH#E &8
HK$'000
T
Ordinary share of HK$0.10 each FARMEE0. 108 T2 Tk
Authorised: JRRE
At 1st January 2006, RZZZF—H—H-
31st December 2006 and ZETRFTZA=+—HEK
1st January 2007 —EE+F—-H—H 1,000,000,000 100,000
Increase in authorised VA TERRANIE hn
share capital (Note 1) (Hat1) 2,900,000,000 290,000
At 31st December 2007 RZZEZT+F+ZA=+—H 3,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER -
At 1st January 2006 RZZZF—H—H 557,351,493 55,735
Issue of consideration BITRERD
shares (Note 2) (Hat2) 117,647,059 11,765
At 31st December 2006 RZETRE+TZA=+—H 674,998,552 67,500
Issue of shares upon: ET5EEETRD
Placement of shares it E /& 15
(Note 3 & 4) (H1i#3%4) 270,000,000 27,000
Exercise of share 1T AR A
options (Note 5) (H1E5) 51,460,000 5,146
Conversion of convertible R RREREE
loan notes (Note 6) (Hiit6) 38,800,705 3,880
At 31st December 2007 RZZEZT+F+-A=+—H 1,035,259,257 103,526
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 26th March
2007 for the increase of the authorised share capital of the
Company from HK$100,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each to HK$300,000,000
divided into 3,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each by the creation of an additional 2,900,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

During the year ended 31st December 2006, 117,647,059
ordinary shares of the Company were issued based
on published market price of HK$0.102 per share to
independent third parties as part of the consideration for
acquisition of 100% equity interest in Grand Panorama
Limited.

On 22nd January 2007, pursuant to a placing and
subscription agreement with VC Brokerage Limited, the
Company placed out 110,000,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each in the Company at a price of HK$0.22 per
share to independent third parties. A sum of approximately
HK$23,900,000 net of placement expenses was raised and
used as working capital of the Group.

On 15th June 2007, pursuant to a placing and subscription
agreement with Citic Securities Corporate Finance (HK)
Limited, the Company placed out 160,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at a price of
HK$0.72 per share to independent third parties. A sum of
approximately HK$112,800,000 net of placement expenses
was raised and used as working capital of the Group.

During the year ended 31st December 2007, 42,200,000
share options were exercised at a price of HK$0.15,
2,660,000 shares at HK$0.233 and 6,600,000 shares at
HK$0.10 resulting in the issue of 51,460,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company.

On 24th October 2007, the convertible loan note holders
converted HK$22,000,000 convertible loan notes into
38,800,705 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the
Company at a conversion price of HK$0.567.

All the ordinary shares issued during the year rank
pari passsu with the then existing ordinary shares in all
respects.

Annual Report 2007 £ $&
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26. BRAN @)

Hiat -

BE-—BR-_ZETZ+E=-FA -+ "ABBzY
BIRFBE - BB INEHN2,900,000,000 & B
HE0I0B Tz LM BARRAERAR
100,000,0007% 7t ( % A1,000,000,000 f% & f% m
fB0.107% JT 2 & i@ %) #5 i1 Z£300,000,0007% 7T
(% %3,000,000,000 % & % E f50.107% T 2 & il
f%) °

BHE_TZXNF+-_A=+—ALEE AR
R AMMESTR0I102BT ABLE=
T3 B1T117,647,05908 A8 A &) L@ A% - {EAUEE
Grand Panorama Limited 100% % AN 25 2 £
B—3h1% -

R-_EZE+F—A-_+-H BREEERSZE
FHARAFBGUZEERRERZE S A2
RERO2L2BTZEE ABYE=ZFEE
110,000,0004% & IX 1 {50.107% 7T 2 A A Al &
AR o kA E X 12 %15 423,900,000 7T
ZHRBCREANEE —REEES -

RZZBZELEXATHER BEEFEFESR
B(BB)BERABRLZEER BB W=
SEZSR072BTZEE  MBLE=7E
£ 160,000,000% & iX T {B0.107 7T 2 & 2 7] 37
TimAk o MBRAC & B X 12 #1549112,800,00078
TZFBREAEAEE-—REEES -

RBE_ZZ+E+_A=+—HILEE"
42,200,00017 & A% # - 2,660,00010 B8 B% 4 &
6,600,00017 & A% # 5 BIl420.157 7T + 0.2337& 7T
K0.10%8 T 2 BE 478+ B B % 751,460,000
i FAREE0. 108 T 2 A A R L@ ©

R-FTELF+A-THEA TRREXRRER
R AR R (E0.5677% 7T * 1§22,000,0005% 7T
Z AR SRR IR S # Ak 38,800,706 % & AR
E010B T2 A DA EBRE -

FRABRTZIMAECBRESTHEER 2RE
TR ZHHEREN -
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

27.

CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES

During the year ended 31st December 2007, pursuant to
the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Quest
Asia Development Limited, the Company issued zero-
coupon convertible loan notes as partial settlement of
the acquisition consideration. The convertible loan notes
have an aggregate principal amount of HK$120,000,000
and are denominated in HK$. The notes entitle the holders
to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company
at any time between the date of issue of the notes and
their settlement date on 1st October 2010 in multiples of
HK$1,000,000 at a conversion price HK$0.567 (subject
to adjustments) per convertible loan note. The shares to
be issued and allotted upon conversions shall rank pari
passu in all respects among themselves and with all other
ordinary shares in issue by the Company on the date of
such allotment and issue.

The convertible loan notes contain two components, liability
and equity elements. The equity element is presented in
equity heading (“convertible bonds reserve”). The effective
interest rate of the liability component is 9.75%.

The movement of the liability component of the convertible
loan notes for the year is set out below:

's o the Consolidated Financial Statements e

BE

27.

e B HRRM

ST+ E+-A=t+—ALLEE

REBEE-_ZTLEF+_A=+—HLEFE " &AQ
AU BE Quest Asia Development Limited & &6
BERETRABNTTEARRERER - UIEA
KERE— B ATRREREZBEBELISER
120,000,000 7T + AABTTEHE - REFE A TR
ERBETHHPEFAERASR(ZZ—ZTF+A—H)
AR AR ERE - REH AT RRERER0.567
BT 2 HARE (Al F %) k1,000,000 T 2 &
FRBEABRAQA LB - BLHBEMAS T
TREHEZBRMBI R EEBREERETH
HERTZARRMARMEBRES TEHE
BIERER -

THEEFREREEMHBD DR ABBERER
Mo RO NERD 25 AJHRE S FH
Bl BEBD ZERMELIT5% °

FARBRERREABRHRD ZEHHINMT

2007 2006

—EFtE ZTTRF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTExT FHT

Carrying amount at 1st January R—A—AZEE%HE - -
Issue of convertible loan FRETAIRRERER

notes during the year 90,775 -

Effective interest expenses BERF S H (a2 10)

(Note 10) 1,842 -

Conversion during the year FAHR (16,739) -

Carrying amount at 31st December RT-ZA=+—HZEHE&%E 75,878 -

GREEN GLOBAL RESOURCES LIMITED #&IRHREREIRD A
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

E-TTLFT-AS+—BLFE

EERERRE

ANEERBEEECHRZENECHBERER
EEZEFWT :

prior years:
Fair value
adjustments arising
from acquisition  Accumulated
of subsidiaries tax
WEHWEBARA  depreciation Total
EEXZATERAE RHABBEHRE s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAEL FAT FAET
At 1st January 2006 RZZEZERF—HA—H = 159 159
Credit to consolidated income statement FAGRE KRR - (159) (159)
At 31st December 2006 RZETRF+=A=+—H - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 30) W BE KT8 A Rl (A77£30) 41,789 = 41,789
At 31st December 2007 RZZE+F+-A=+—H 41,789 - 41,789

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately HK$21,714,000 (2006 : HK$21,950,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Annual Report 2007 £ $&

R&EEH AEEBEAPIBHEEBEEY
21,714,000 7t (ZZZ 754 :21,950,000%8 7T) -
] PR (R 88 R 2RO Al o R 5K AR B E R 2R AE 8
2 AGTEERERRABRRABERERE
B o BIRER R ER A A o
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

209.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s current share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) was adopted by the shareholders on 30th May
2002 for the primary purpose of providing incentives to
directors, employees and persons providing services to the
Group. It will expire on 29th May 2012. Under the Scheme,
the board may grant options to eligible employees,
including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,
suppliers and service providers to subscribe for shares in
the Company.

At the balance sheet date, the number of shares options
granted and remained outstanding under the scheme was
86,141,855 (2006: 53,920,000), representing 8.32% (2006:
8.00%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.
The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be
issued in respect of which options granted and may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Options granted to substantial shareholders
and independent non-executive directors in excess of 0.1%
of the Company’s share capital or with a value in excess
of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.

HK$1 is payable on each grant. Options may be exercised
at any time from the date of grant of the share option
during the option period ending on 29th May 2012. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’'s shares on the offer date
of the options; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
for the five business days immediately preceding the offer
date; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

GREEN GLOBAL RESOURCES LIMITED #&IRHREREIRD A
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e BB RR M

ST+ E+-A=t+—ALLEE

BROBFRR5Z

ARABREERESE(ZFED R _ZF
FREA=THERRRHK T2EENEF &
BRRGAEE 2 ALIRHER  BR_F——
FEAZTNARER - RIEZFTE  EFESAM
SERERE(BEARARENBARES)  #
&7 R AR A e P R B A - ARBRB AN A R

1/\ ®

REZE R - BRIEZT &R RADARITE 2 08 AR
#86,141,8551) ( = Z = 75 4 : 53,920,000173) -
HEREAARQRAIEEITRNH Z2832% (=T
N 8.00%) o AN A A AR R I AR E LB 2
BT - RIBZT B A RE R 2 AR AT R AR
DA REFKBTEBEARAEZETRG
10%  RARAIREITEEABEZBRLT £
] —F R EERERA LD & RA R L ZEBR
A REERGEHTZRNEE - REME
MABBaRARARNZ1%  MEERERE
VIHFBTEEREBAEARAFRKRA01%KEEE
#15,000,000/8 70,2 FERRHE - EEEEARTRR
#EE o

ARBREL 2 ERES 1T o BRER B
BhEREASBEE T ——FRA=-TNBIL
BRESNRARERTE TEEAARAIESRE
- ABLRUTESE : ((EBREREZAHAN
AR BHRTE: (NBEREREEHMAEEEE
D FH TR R (i) AN TR EE -
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For the year ended 31st December 2007 BHE-_TT+tF+-_A=1+—HLFE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

29. BRI RRZ @

Fair value

Exercise at grant date

Date of grant Exercise period price ZHAH
HHAH 171 5 TiEE ZNFEE
21st January 2000 From date of grant to 20th January 2010 HK$2.532 (Note)
—TTTF—A=+—H HEHASME - ZT-—ZT&E-A—+H 25327 T (Bt )
27th November 2003 From date of grant to 29th May 2012 HK$0.233 HK$0.05674
ZTTE=F+—A=++tH HBHEEABHE-_T-—-—FRA-TN1H 0.2337% 7T 0.05674 77T
19th August 2006 From date of grant to 29th May 2012 HK$0.100 HK$0.05674
—ETERENATAR HREBBHE-_T——FR A=+ 1H 0.1007% 7T 0.05674 7 7T
29th November 2006 From date of grant to 29th May 2012 HK$0.150 HK$0.05674
ZTEERF+—AZ+NA HBHEEASHE-_ZT-——-—FRA=-F1H 0.1507% 7T 0.05674 77T
16th April 2007 From date of grant to 29th May 2012 HK$0.360 HK$0.12500
—ZETEFWATRA AREBEHE-_"ZT——FRA=-1ThAE 0.3607% 7T 0.125007 7T
9th July 2007 From date of grant to 29th May 2012 HK$0.660 HK$0.20200
—ZETEFEANHB HREBBHE-_T——FR A=+ 1H 0.6607% 7T 0.202007 7T
20th November 2007 From date of grant to 29th May 2012 HK$0.380 HK$0.21700
—EE+FE+—HZ+H AREBEHE-—"ZT——FRA=-1ThAE 0.3807% 7T 0.217007 7T

REENDZHFGRR  CETBRENELBHE

arrangement, options issued vest at the date of grant. B

In accordance with the terms of the share-based

ENRBEEFEAREBREZTEER
BEAESRARBRMHRITHE - §$$B1*
TEBEENEETIA  EMEEGETFER

view of the high value of the exercise price of such options (=R

Note:  The fair value of the options granted under the previous Hiat -
scheme has not been estimated as the directors believe
that the likelihood of the exercise of the right is remote in

relative to the current market price of the Company’s
shares.

F_ngiﬁﬁﬁﬂj,ﬂ%%%zfafﬁﬁm%%H
Z-BhERRAMAOR —FEN ] HEEEERN
FEfE - RHUKE R 8 RB400f 5 B (3115
FIHEZZIEER -

The fair value of those granted in 2003 was estimated
by the directors. Options were priced using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model. Expected volatility is based
on extracts from the Bloomberg’s information based on 400
trading days (around 1.5 years).
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

BE

s fo the Consolidated Financial Statements A IR R MR

SETLET-ASHALER

29. RBNRXZ @

The fair value of the share options granted by the Group
during the year ended 31st December 2007 have been

arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out on
the grant date by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited,
independent qualified professional valuers not collected
with the Group. The fair values were calculated using The

$§%@f%$ﬁ§:*7“t¢+*ﬂ:+—ﬁtfﬂg
EHzBREATFEDERPEFGEAERA
(EAREEYEBEZEBIA éﬁ%iﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬂi)ﬁ’\
REBAHET 2 AEMSE - A FEDRAE
Nn—FRAT HEEEREAGFE -ARABAZ
T

Black-Scholes option pricing model.

model were as follows:

The inputs into the

Share options granted on

SRR E M A B

20th

16th April 9th July November

2007 2007 2007
“ETtE —TETLF —EFLE 2006
mMA+~H tAABR +—A=+H —EERE
Weighted average g RRE HK$0.360  HK$0.350 HK$0.360 HK$0.138
share price 0.360%7C  0.350% 7T 0.3607 7T 0.138% 7T
Exercise price TEE HK$0.360 HK$0.660  HK$0.380  HK$0.100/HK$0.150
0.360/%7C  0.660/7T 0.3807% T 0.1007% 7T,/ 0.15075 7T
Expected volatility TEHE i 53.87% 54.32% 113.59% 90.39%
53.87% 54.32% 113.59% 90.39%
Expected option period 78 HABE A% 4 B RS 2.6 years 2.4 years 2.26 years 1.5 years
2.6%F 2.4% 2.26%F 1.56
Dividend yield i B 0% 0% 0% 0%
0% 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate J=R B A1) 2 4.015% 4.417% 2.491% 3.642%
4.015% 4.417% 2.491% 3.642%
Option type BAREE SR Call Call Call Call
REHE REDRE RS B RHE B

The variables and assumptions used in computing the AHEEREATEMREAZHRBRRTIIR E”§$

fair value of the share options are based on the directors’
best estimate. The value of an option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions.

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$18,372,000
for the year ended 31st December 2007 (2006:
HK$1,505,000) in relation to the share options granted by
the Company.

GREEN GLOBAL RESOURCES LIMITED #&IRHREREIRD A

r1i1$§7%/§ - BIEEEREES TEBRR
TR & e

AEERBE_ZZLF+ A=+ HLFE
ShAS X B BT R B Aok R R B R 48.9518,372,000
I (ZZZ/N4F ¢ 1,505,000 7T) °
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For the year ended 31st December 2007 BHE-_TT+tF+-_A=1+—HLFE
29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 29. BRI Z @)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Movements of the Company's share options held by FAN-EE EEREBBAMBIARRBERE
employees, directors and business associates during the ZEHMT :
year are:
Number of share options
ERESA
Outstanding Outstanding
Outstanding at 31st at 31st
at December December
1st January 2006 2007
2006 Granted Lapsed RZFBRE Granted Lapsed  Exercised WZFFtE  Exercised
Dateof HZFFAE  duringthe  during the +ZF  duringthe  duringthe  during the = price
Grantee |LE]rant =Ji=l year year =t+-f 2006 year year + er share
REA & KTl ENEY % KTl EREY EN%H fi?ﬁﬂﬁ ﬁ ﬂ)’iﬁﬁg
AT
Directors
Bz
M. Tse Michael Nem 91h Juy 2007 - - - - 900 - - 9600 0660
(appointed on “T5tELRNA
12th February 2007)
AEERE
(R_Z2tE
ZR+ZBEZH)
Mr. Tai Benedict 29th November 2006 - 600,000 - 600,000 - - (600,000) - 0.150
(resigned on ZEENET-AZTAR
1st March 2008)
BlErE
(R= 22 NE
=R-REf)
Mr. Fu Yan Yan 29th November 2006 - 600,000 - 600,000 - - (600,000) - 0.150
(resigned on 35 E+-A=TAR
~30th June 2007)
AMREL
(R=22+%A
=TERFfE)
Ms. Wang Xi Ling 29th November 2006 - 600,000 - 600,000 - - (600,000) - 0.150
(resigned on 35 E+-A=TAR
30th June 2007)
Akt
(R=22+%1A
=TERFfE)
M Lim Yew Kong, Jofin 16 April 2007 - - - - 600000 - - 600000 0360
(appointed on “TTHENATAA
12th February 2007)
Lim Yew Kong, Johnt £
(R=FFtE-AT2A
BZf)
Mr. Puongpun Sananikone 9th July 2007 - - - - 600,000 - - 600,000 0.660
(appointed on “ZEEFLANA
1st July 2007 and

re-deswgnated as executive
director on 1st March 2008)
Puongpun Sanamkoneﬁé
(R=2Z+E+A-R
REERR-FE)\%
ZR-RAfEHTES)
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For the year ended 31st December 2007 BHE-_ZTT+tF+-_A=1+—HLFE
29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 29. BB ARRZ @

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Number of share options

ERiEZR
Outstanding Outstanding
Outstanding at 31st at 31st
at December December
1st January 2006 2007
2006 Granted Lapsed MZFERE Granted Lapsed  Exercised WZFFtE  Exercised
Dateof WZFFRE  duringthe  during the +ZF  duringthe  duringthe  during the +ZA price
Grantee grant -A-A year year Sr=f year year year Si=f] per share
REA RUAH AT N ENEH AT R % Enfrf ATE  BROERE
HK$
BT
Other employees
Al
In aggregate 27th November 2003 8,045,000 - (5045000) 3,000,000 - (340000)  (2,660,000) - 0233
g8 S e
29th November 2006 - 8,000,000 - 8,000,000 - - (7,200,000) 800,000 0.150
ZERNET-ATAR
9th July 2007 - - - - 3,750,000 - - 3,750,000 0.660
ZZRHELANA
Business associates
EHREAL
In aggregate 21st January 2000 1,320,000 - - 1,320,000 - - - 1,320,000 2532
g8 ZZTRF-A=1-H
19th August 2006 - 6,600,000 - 6,600,000 - - (6,600,000) - 0.100
ZREENATAR
29th November 2006 - 33,200,000 - 33,200,000 - - (33,200,000) - 0.150
ZERNET-ATAR
9th July 2007 - - - - 70,000,000 - - 70,000,000 0.660
ZZRHELANA
20th November 2007 - - - - 8,075,855 - - 8,075,855 0.380
“ERLET- 1A
Sub-total
130 4% 9,365,000 49,600,000 (5,045,000) 53,920,000 84,021,855 (340,000)  (51,460,000)  86,141,85
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For the year ended 31st December 2007 BHE-_TT+tF+-_A=1+—HLFE
30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 30. WEEHKIEB A Al
(a) On 27th March 2007, the Group acquired 100% of (a) RZTZLF=A=+tH X~EEUYHE

the share capital of Huge Value for a consideration Huge Value 100% %7 + X {&78,000,000

of HK$78,000,000. This acquisition has been BT o ZIBWHEERAWEEALR - %18

accounted for using the purchase method. The W RS B £ 2 T B 4 /29,578,000 7T © A

amount of goodwill arising as a result of the FZEBEWRE 2 EEERNT

acquisition was approximately HK$29,578,000.
The relevant information about the acquisition is as

follows:
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount before
combination Fair value
U EE /AR adjustment Fair value
REHIZIRESE LATEAR AR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FHBT FAT FHBT
(Note 1)
(Kia£1)
Net assets acquired: i NFEE :
Collection and cultivation rights W KIS TR - 65,645 65,645
Other payables H A A FRIE (15) = (15)
Deferred tax liability RIEFRIB A E = (16,411) (16,411)
(15) 49,234 49,219
Goodwill S 29,578
Consideration KRB 78,797
Satisfied by: AR -
Cash Re 60,000
Deferred consideration (Note 2) BIERE (Mfat2) 18,000
Transaction costs RS A 797
Total consideration of WHEER(E
the acquisition 78,797
Net cash outflow arising WEEE RS
on acquisition: e FEE
Cash consideration paid BENERERE 60,000
Transaction costs paid BRI RS 797

131
60,797
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30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

(a)

(Continued)
Notes:

1. The fair value adjustment represents the fair value
of the collection and cultivation rights as at 27th
March 2007, which was determined by reference
to the valuation carried out by Greater China
Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected to the Group.

2. Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement
dated 12th February 2007, HK$18,000,000 will
be payable on production of evidence to the
reasonable satisfaction of the Group that the
audited profit after taxation of Huge Value in twelve
months after the completion date of acquisition is
not less than HK$7,000,000.

Huge Value had no significant contribution to the
Group’s turnover and contributed approximately
HK$12,030,000 profit to the Group’s loss before
taxation for the period between the date of
acquisition and the balance sheet date.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1st
January 2007, there would have been no significant
impact on the Group's turnover and loss for the
year. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication
of revenue and results of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1st January 2007, nor is it intended to
be a projection of future results.

GREEN GLOBAL RESOURCES LIMITED #&IRHREREIRD A

e B HRRM

BE-TRLF+-AS+—ALEE

30. WHEHT B 2 B )

(a)

(%)
Wit -
1. ATEARRKERSEER-TT

tF=ZA=_+EtRZAFE H2EE
EFEARAR (BAEE T ERE L
BIUAEREXMERM) FET 2
MEE °

2. BREBHA-ZTETLF-_A+=AHZ
B F 15 18,000,000 7T #§ 7 H /R A
SEAEBEEAZRERIMN  AHAR
¥ * Huge ValuelA Ug 8% SEpk H Hi 18
TZERAZEEZRBERS - TED
77,000,000/ 7T °

Huge Value AU iE A HAZ 48 A I BAfE %
AEBZEXBUEBERNER  WALRE
& 2 Bk B Al E5 18 55 28 912,030,000 7T 2
s Al o

HEBER —ZTLtF A —H=zK " &1
BHARBEZAFEEXBREEENE

TE - ZEREENERFARE T
—EAERHKBER-_ETLE A —
B REBERERZIRARES
TR BE TR AR REAE -
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

On 2nd October 2007, the Group acquired 100% of
the share capital of Quest Asia for a consideration
of HK$190,000,000. This acquisition has been
accounted for using the purchase method. The
amount of goodwill arising as a result of the
acquisition was approximately HK$114,461,000.
The relevant information about the acquisition is as
follows:

(b)

BE-TRLF+-ASt+—ALEE

30. WHEHT B 2 B )

R_ZEZTLtF+A-_B AEEKE
Quest Asia 100% /% 74 - X {&190,000,000
PBIT o ZIBWEE A WREEAR - 278
W BE EE 4 2 BB 40 /5114,461,0007 T ©
BRZEREZHBERDNT

(b)

Acquiree’s
carrying
amount before

combination Fair value
B /AR adjustment Fair value
REHIZIEREEHE 2ATFEAR NEE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FHET FAT FHT
(Note 1)
(Kia£1)
Net assets acquired: g NFEEE :
Collection and cultivation rights Wtk RIS TR = 101,511 101,511
Other receivables H i FE U FRIE 22 = 22
Other payables A S FRIE (22) = (22)
Deferred tax liability BEEFIBAE = (25,378) (25,378)
- 76,133 76,133
Goodwill [ES 114,461
Consideration RE 190,594
Satisfied by: AR
Cash RBe 70,000
Convertible loan notes (Note 2) AR ERER (Hit2) 120,000
Transaction costs R G 594
Total consideration of Wi B
the acquisition 190,594
Net cash outflow arising WHEEE 2Re
on acquisition: T FEE
Cash consideration paid EfReRE 70,000
Transaction costs paid BERNRZEA 594
70,594
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(b)

(Continued)
Notes:

1. The fair value adjustment represents the fair value
of the collection and cultivation rights as at 2nd
October 2007 which was determined by reference
to the valuation carried out by Greater China
Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected to the Group.

2. On 2nd October 2007, the Group issued
HK$120,000,000 convertible loan notes at zero
coupon interest rates as part of the consideration
for the acquisition of Quest Asia.

Quest Asia had no significant contribution to the
Group’s turnover and contributed approximately
HK$673,000 profit to the Group’s loss before
taxation for the period between the date of
acquisition and the balance sheet date.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1st
January 2007, there would have been no significant
impact on the Group's turnover and loss for the
year. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication
of revenue and results of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1st January 2007, nor is it intended to
be a projection of future results.

GREEN GLOBAL RESOURCES LIMITED #&IRERERER A A

e B HRRM

BE-TRLF+-AS+—ALEE

30. WHEHT B 2 B )

(b)

(%)
HiaE

1. AFERABEEAERBEEER_-_ZTZF
tETAZHZAFEZE  H2EE
ENEERAR (BAEETERE L
B A EREEMGER) FET 2
MmEE °

2. RZZTZTLFT+A=-H AEEET
120,000,000 T 2 T B Al # i B 3k =
% EAKREQuest AsiaZ BB D KRB °

Quest AsiaR W H B ZE&H B IR S
REBzEXBIESERNER TAAS
B 2B B AT A1 R 673,000 7T 2% F °

HEBER —ZTLF—A—H=zK " &1
BHARBEZAFEEXBREEENE

TE - ZEREEMERFARE T
—EAEARHKBER-_ETLE A —
B REBERERZIRARES
TR EE TR R REEAE -
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._“-E
For the year ended 31st December 2007 BHE-_TT+tF+-_A=1+—HLFE
30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 30. WEEHT B A Al )

(Continued)

(c) On 17th December 2007, the Group acquired (c) RZZEZELF+ZA++EH - AEEK
80% of the share capital of Lao-Agro for a fELao-Agro 80% M%7 + X (87,800,000
consideration of HK$7,800,000. This acquisition has TCo R EWEERAKEAEANKR - ZEIK
been accounted for using the purchase method. B8 B 4 2 72 /7,800,000 7T - B B %
The amount of goodwill arising as a result of R 2 HEAER T
the acquisition was HK$7,800,000. The relevant
information about the acquisition is as follows:

2007
—ETLHE
HK$’000
FHET
Net assets acquired FriE NF & E =
Goodwill Bk 7,800
Total consideration of the acquisition Wag (B 7,800
Satisfied by: AR :
Cash Re 7,800
Net cash outflow arising WHEEE RS
on acquisition: R
Cash consideration paid BERNBREERE 7,800
Lao-Agro had no significant contribution to the Lao-AgroRWEE R i Z 42 H It HIMEAEE 2
Group’s turnover and the loss before taxation for EEBERRTAEELESKER °
the period between the date of acquisition and the
balance sheet date.
If the acquisition had been completed on 1st WKREBR-_ZETLF—A—HZK BT8R
January 2007, there would have been no significant SR AFEREBREBENERLE - 25
impact on the Group’s turnover and loss for the HEEHNEHMFRARE  T—EAETHEER
year. The pro forma information is for illustrative RZZEZELF-—A—HBZXK A5BERERZ
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication WARZESE - INTRETRBIRRESE -
of revenue and results of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1st January 2007, nor is it intended to
be a projection of future results.
135
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

(d)

In August 2006, the Group acquired 100% of the
share capital of GP which in turn holds 100% of
Conity investment and Consultants (Shanghai)

BE-TRLF+-AS+—ALEE

30. WHEHT B 2 B )

(d) RZZTEARNFENA  AEEKEGP 100%

Company Limited. The relevant information about

the acquisition is as follows:

A MGPHEA LEHAIKREAAER
A FEIN00%HEzs - EEZBREZBEE
B

2006
ZEERF
HK$'000
FAT
Net liabilities acquired: g ABEFHE :
Plant and equipment B R 5% 558
Prepayment TR IR 234
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk H A fE U RIE 1,662
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFCEEY 23
Amount due to related companies REAE R RFRIA (1,940)
Other payables H fth T 518 (1,908)
(1,371)
Goodwill P 33,033
Total consideration BRRE 31,662
Satisfied by: IHRAR :
Cash He 18,000
Fair value of the 117,647,059 ARFIREAMMEETZ
shares of the Company issued 117,647,059 f& {5
based on published market price pd/NS ] 12,000
Transaction costs RGN 1,662
Total consideration of the acquisition g @R (E 31,662
Net cash outflow on acquisition: WHEEE A 2 & 558 -
Cash consideration paid ERRERE 18,000
Transaction costs paid B R ZKA 1,662
Less: Bank balances and cash acquired W RITERRFIBARS (23)
19,639
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

30.

31.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

(d) (Continued)
The factors that contributed to the recognition of
the goodwill included profit guarantees made by
the vendors of GP and potential for growth in the
property market in the PRC.

BHE

ST+ E+-A=+—AILLEE

30. WHEHT B 2 B )

(d) (%)
BRAPE 7 RABREGPE R 1EH % MR
BRPBEMENBZEREBEN -

—_— N\ =
DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 31. LWE—HMEAF
N—mE I R —
At 31st May 2007, the Group disposed of its entire interest N =r=g ‘tiﬂﬁ__—'_— H AKK@ i
. o L ; ; i ¥ 75 2 [ |8 2 ®]China Action Development
in an inactive subsidiary, China Action Development Limited o o e N - —
; ) ; : ) Limited FRR BB = 5 + K {E248,000/ T °
to two independent third parties for a consideration of
approximately HK$248,000.
HK$'000
FHBT
Net assets disposed of it EFEE
Prepayment SELRE L 249
Loss on disposal HEBE (1)
Total consideration BRE 248
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELEZRESRAFRE
Cash consideration BeRE 248
The subsidiary disposed of during the year ended 31st REBEE_ZTTLF+_A=1T—HIEFELEZ
December 2007 had no significant impact on the turnover MEBARHAEE & XBREBNESAZT
and results of the Group. 2 o
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32.

s 10 the Consolidated Financial Statements

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There were no related party transactions in 2007. Except
as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group entered into the following significant
related party transactions with relevant parties in 2006:

(a)

For the year ended 31st December 2006, the
Group disposed of half of the 14.86% of the
equity shareholdings in ChinaCast Communication
Holdings Limited to a director for a consideration of
SGDY,250,000 (approximately HK$45,323,000).

For the year ended 31st December 2006, the Group
received management services income from an
unlisted company classified as an available-for-sale
investee company to amount of HK$312,000. The
director of the company is also a director of the
Group.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors of the Company and

other members of key management during the year
was as follows:

BE

32.

e B HRRM

ST+ E+-A=t+—ALLEE

— ==

B

BALTRS

TtFALEFHREALRS - RZZFER

FBREAMBRRAEMIEY STHESN &
SHEBHEALTETZEREHEALR SN

T~

(a)

RBE-TTAF+-A=+—A"
NEEH @M — & &F F H EChinaCast
Communication Holdings Limited
14.86%M AN # = K — %+ KB
9,250,0003 7t (4945,323,000%8 7T) °

RBEE-ZEAF+_A=1+—H8LF
B AEEE—MIFELTRAR(DEAT
HEHEWRERR) W E E RS K=
312,000/87C c ZARIZEZNALREH
o

TEEEASHIME

AABBEEREMEIBEEAEREARNZ
BT :

2007 2006

—EFLHE ZETREF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FERT FHT

Short-term benefits REEA 6,197 8,747
Post-employment benefits BB 8 A 49 54
Share-based payments nRNEN 801 102
7,047 8,903

The remuneration of directors of the Company and
key executives is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

GREEN GLOBAL RESOURCES LIMITED #&IRHREREIRD A
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e
For the year ended 31st December 2007 BHE-_TT+tF+-_A=1+—HLFE
33. COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING 33. &K&fHE&IE
LEASES
(a) Commitments under operating leases (a) REHERE
The Group as lessee AEEFEREAHAA
The Group leases certain of its offices premises, AEBREBEKLEHELHHEREETE R
staff quarters and property agency branches under BYE BIBERMERENIT W%
operating lease arrangements. Lease for properties HERERAMBEAZRFEARE -
are negotiated for a term ranging from two months
to five years.
At the balance sheet date, the Group had REER  AEBERBETIIRHECEHE
commitments for future minimum lease payments EUTHEIBNARRZERASBED
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall ™
due as follows:
2007 2006
—ETLE ZETREF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Land and buildings T RAETF
Within one year —F R 2,547 793
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFAF (HEEMEBREER) 2,195 377
4,742 1,170
(b) Other commitments (b) H fth 7 8
The Group had capital commitment which R=ZZFBZ+tF+-_A=+—8 A£EH
was authorised but not contracted for totaling BB ARBINEEZEREBRTHE
approximately HK$36,035,000 in respect of the AN 48 58 49 836,035,000 L (=2
additional capital injection in subsidiaries as at 31st NECTEIT) ©
December 2007 (2006: Nil).
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Annual Report 2007 £ $&

GREEN GLOBAL RESOURCES LIMITED #&RIREFERLE



For the year ended 31st December 2007 BHE-_ZTT+tF+-_A=1+—HLFE

s to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ 44

by ES e R

34. BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION OF 34, KpREEREBEREHR

THE COMPANY

2007 2006
—ETtEE —TERF
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
P 5 THET T

Non-current assets EMENE E
Property, plant and equipment M - BB R E 744 136
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZIE 39,631 39,631
40,375 39,767

Current assets mBNE E
Other receivables H b fE WK IE 670 650
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE U Y /B8 2 Rl R (a) 313,471 62,071
Bank balances and cash RITEBRER S 2,893 31
317,034 62,752
Current liabilities mBEE

Other payables H b fE 5 RIB 4,275 2,167
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE BT B A R A (a) 3,834 2,012
Amount due to an investee company FEH AR E N RFHIE (b) = 82
Bank overdraft RITHEX - 10
8,109 4,271
Net current assets mBEEFE 308,925 58,481
Total assets less current liabilities BEERBERTBEE 349,300 98,248

Capital and reserves BEARR#ME
Share capital f& 75 103,526 67,500
Reserves L] (c) 169,896 30,748
Total equity HEmEE 273,422 98,248

Non-current liabilities EmEBAE
Convertible loan notes B ERE 75,878 =
140 349,300 98,248
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i
For the year ended 31st December 2007 BHE-_TT+tF+-_A=1+—HLFE
34. BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION OF 3. KPR EEEBBEERER @m

THE COMPANY (Continued)

(a) Amounts due from/to subsidiaries (a) FEML B A Y 2 R SR
ZEFIEREER 2R RAREREE

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing RAST Kabibaelt : o
and repayable on demand. The fair values of & ARNAFHRRNERANE JHH AR

4 /N
the amounts at the balance sheet date was BHAZATEREASBAE

approximated to the corresponding carrying
amounts due to their short term maturity.

(b) Amount due to an investee company (b) it — MR B AR KRR

ZEFAREER  RERERAFER
HEER BNZERAREHRIE &
HRBEEAZ A TFEERASEER

The amount was unsecured, non-interest bearing
and was fully settled during the year. The fair value
of the amounts at the balance sheet date was
approximated to the corresponding carrying amount
due to its short term maturity.

(c) Reserves (c) L
Convertible
bonds Share
Share  Contributed reserve options Accumulated
premium surplus R reserve losses Total
B E 0N BHfE  BRERE 2RER ekl
HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000
TATL TBT TAL TEL THT TEL
At 1st January 2006 RZZEE F-A—-H 342,312 39,431 - - (340,721) 41,022
Issued of consideration FIRERR
shares 235 - - - - 235
Recognition of equity-settled ARALEE - - - 1,505 - 1,505
share based payments OIS
Loss for the year FEFR - - = - (12,014) (12,014)
At 31st December 2006 RIZERF+A=+—H 342547 39,431 - 1,505 (352,735) 30,748
Issue of convertible loan notes BIARESZ - - 29,225 - - 29,225
Issue of shares upon AU TEERTRA
— placement of shares —RERAR 109,730 - - - - 109,730
— conversion of convertible — RRTRRERZ
loan notes 18,217 - (5,358) - - 12,859
— exercise of share options — {7 akiE 5233 - - (2,769) - 2,464
Recognition of equity-settled BRARALE - - - 18,372 - 18,372
share based payments BGEES
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - (33,502) (33,502)
141
At 31st December 2007 RZZZ+F+-_A=+—-0 475727 39,431 23,867 17,108 (386,237) 169,896
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

es to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢ &&

by ES e R

BE-TRLF+-AS+—ALEE

35. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 35. AMIB AR 2=
At the balance sheet date, the Company has interests in BER ARARTIIEZMBA
the following principal subsidiaries: %ﬁ%?l
Nominal
value of
paid-up
share/ Proportion of
registered ownership
Place of capital interest Principal
Company incorporation RSB/ ) activities
A A B L M B AMEREE P bt 61 TEEH
2007 2006
k- 322 ZEERE
Held directly:
EiERE:
Technology Venture British Virgin US$1,000 100 100 Investment holding
Investments Limited Islands (‘BVI") 1,000 RERR
RRRAHES
Held indirectly:
BiEHE
Sequent China/ Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Distribution of information
Hong Kong Limited B 10,0007 technology products and
provision of computer
technology services
DHENRRERR
RS R RIRE
Techology Venture BVI US$1,000 100 100 Investment holding
(Software) Holdings KBRIES 1,000 RERR
Limited
Topasia Computer Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Distribution of information
BEEKERAR i 10,000%7C technology products and
provision of computer
technology services
PHEARBERR
REBRRIRE

GREEN GLOBAL RESOURCES LIMITED #&IRERERER A A

Annual Report 2007 £ ¥



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements o 4B &R

For the year ended 31st December 2007

35. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

BE-TRLF+-ASt+—ALEE

35. RMIEB QT 2z @)

(Continued)
Nominal
value of
paid-up
share/ Proportion of
registered ownership
Place of capital interest Principal
Company incorporation BREH/ ) activities
2E BTk AfERzEE R bt B TEXH
2007 2006
“F%tE e -3
Topsoft Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Distribution of information
RETMHEB AR i 10,0007%7T technology products and
provision of computer
technology services
PHERRRERR
RABMRIRS
Topasia Tech The PRC Registered 100 100 Distribution of information
(Shanghai) Limited (#) # Capital technology products and
BEEHE (L8) BRARW) US$3,800,000 provision of computer
AR technology services
3,800,000%7T PHEARBERR
RABMRIRS
Topasia IT Service The PRC Registered 100 100 Provision of systems
(Shanghai) Limited (#) HE Capital integration and maintenance
BREEEERS (8) US$1,000,000 services
ABARH) AR REZGEKRRERE
1,000,000% 7T
Acacia Asia Partners BVI US$1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited KBRIES E REER
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

35. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

s to the Consolidated Financial Statements o %4 B R R HTET

BE-TRLF+-AS+—ALEE

35. RMIEB QT 2z @)

(Continued)
Nominal
value of
paid-up
share/ Proportion of
registered ownership
Place of capital interest Principal
Company incorporation HWRBH/ b activities
AR AL AMERzEE itk TEXH
2007 2006
k- 32 2 “TIRE
Acacia Asia The PRC Registered 100 100 Network technology,
Partners Limited (#) H Capital software development
IS R A R 1US$140,000 and provision of technical
BRARH) HER support services
140,000% 70 BRI BIHER
AR TR R
Grand Panorama Limited BVI US$10,411 100 100 Investment holding
ERRRHE 1041ET RERR
Conity Investment and The PRC Registered 100 100 Provision of real estate
Consultants (Shanghai) HEl Capital consulting agency services
Company Limited () US$140,000 REEREBER RS
LEBARERABRARM) &R
140,000% 7
Huge Value Development BVI US$1 100 - Management and cultivation
Limited FRRAHS (E of licorice
ERREEEE
Quest Asia Development BVI US$1 100 - Management and cultivation
Limited FRRAHS (E of licorice and salix
ERREEEENDY
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e
For the year ended 31st December 2007 BHE-_TT+tF+-_A=1+—HLFE
35. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 35, RMIB AR 2z @
(Continued)
Nominal
value of
paid-up
share/ Proportion of
registered ownership
Place of capital interest Principal
Company incorporation BRBRH/ ] activities
A AE RS AL 3B FMEAZEE R bt FTEEH
2007 2006
k-3 3 ZZERE
China Bioenergy Holdings BVI US$1 100 - R&D and cultivation of raw materials
Limited RBRAES (ESp for the bio-energy industry
HE REE AR 2 R
Hainan Venture Zhengke The PRC Registered 90 - Nursery and research and
Bioenergy Development HE capital development centre for
Company Limited RMB50,000,000 jatropha
(“Hainan Venture”) FRER i E B R e L
ARE50,000,0007C
Lao Agro-Promotion Lao People’s US$400,000 80 - Nursery and research and
Limited Democratic 400,000% 7 development centre for
(“Lao Agro”) Republic jatropha
EBMARRELRE [REHEEERE G
# Wholly owned foreign enterprises. # SNELFE
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company BEERE LRMINADRGEHBARHYAETEN
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect BAFEXEENBRAEEEEFEERNILD Z
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion RAl - BEEZRE REEMWNBRARZFBEES
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other RIEAR TR °
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities BEEM B A Bl %A E A R 4 & B sk & A (A B
outstanding as at the end of the year or at any time during BHNERES -
the year.
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

36. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

37.

ii)

In January 2007, the Group disposed of its
remaining shares in ChinaCast Communication
Holdings Limited for a consideration of
approximately HK$69,597,000. On the same day,
the Group acquired 1,551,771 shares in ChinaCast
Education Corporation for a consideration the same
amount.

In October 2007, the Company issued convertible
loan notes of HK$120,000,000 which was used as
partial consideration for the acquisition of Quest
Asia.

During the year ended 31st December 2007,
convertible loan notes of approximately HK$
22,000,000 was converted into 38,800,705 shares
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the company.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 16th January 2008, Mr. Lee Cheong Fu,
a holder of convertible loan notes converted
another HK$18,350,000 convertible loan notes into
32,363,315 ordinary shares of the Company at the
conversion price of HK$0.567.

On 25th February 2008, the Company entered
into a subscription agreement with Integrated
Asset Management (Asia) Limited (“Integrated”)
and Mr. Yam Tak Cheung, the sole shareholder of
Integrated as the guarantor for the subscription of
an aggregate of 199,000,000 new shares of the
Company at a subscription price of HK$0.25 per
share.

The net proceeds from the subscription received by
the Company of approximately HK$49,650,000 was
applied towards the Company’s new agricultural
businesses and as general working capital.

GREEN GLOBAL RESOURCES LIMITED #&IRHREREIRD A

BE

s fo the Consolidated Financial Statements A IR R MR

SETLET-ASHALER

36. ERFRERS

37.

i)

:t parad
I|||:|

RZZEZLFE—F AEBELHEEFEZ
#2 T ChinaCast Communication Holdings
Limitedi&fp + X {& /569,597,000 T °
FH - AEELERKEWRECHhinaCast
Education Corporation 1,551,771%%

{/'\ ®

R_ZZEZELtF+ A KB A EIT
120000000%%27?@& TRER  {E
AU Quest AsiaZ FD KRB °

RBE_ZZ+XF+_HA=+—HIF
€+ #922,000,0007% 7T 2 Al # R B R E &
B X #5% 38,800,705 & X HE fE0.107% 7T
AR E B -

EBH®&EE

R=ZZTZT/\F—H+/NH ' Lee Cheong
Fut £ (AIRBREREBRFEA) RER
18 & I B 15 0.5677%8 JT #18,350,0007 JT
Z AR SRR IR 4 /332,363,316 8 A
NAEEBER o

R=ZFETN\F=-_A=+HB  AAAH
Integrated Asset Management (Asia)
Limited ([ Integrated |) &Integratedz &
—RERERELEE (ERREAN) FTLRE

W B UL R EE S $£199,000, oooﬂxzﬁ
AR - BEARBEEATRAD0.25%
7_E o

AAEEREEERRZAEBRIEFED
£49,650,0008 7T * EAERA AR ZH 2
EEBR—REEES -
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

37. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)

i)

On 3rd March 2008, Technology Venture
Investments Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement for the sale the entire issued share
capital in Grand Panorama Limited and its
subsidiary, Conity Investment and Consultants
(Shanghai) Company Limited to a third party for a
consideration of RMB4,000,000.

The disposal was completed on 31st March
2008. The net consideration of approximately
HK$4,160,000 was applied towards the working
capital of the Group.

On 5th March 2008, Green Global Resources
Investments Limited (“GGRI”), a newly incorporated
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Inner
Mongolia Tian Lan Technology Sand Control Estate
Limited (“Tian Lan”) entered into a cooperation
agreement, pursuant to which the two parties
agreed to cooperate in executing a project for
the planting of 5,000,000 Chinese mu of salix
psammophila over the next 5 years and 200,000
Chinese mu of licorice roots over the next 3 years
on the Ordos Plateau in Inner Mongolia, the PRC.

GGRI will invest a maximum amount of
HK$70,000,000 in the first year of the project. GGRI
and Tian Lan will be entitled to 90% and 10%,
respectively, of the profit after tax (excluding any
government subsidies) derived from the project
and 80% and 20%, respectively, of any government
subsidies granted for the project.
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37.

ST+ E+-A=+—AILLEE

i)

HEHEBEE @)

RZ=ZZZN\F =H = H " Technology
Venture Investments Limited (E A2 7]
ZEEWBAR) I ZEER R @ BitW
%= HEH MR Grand Panorama Limited
¥ Grand Panorama Limited if & A 7] /&
HE R EFZABRAR Z 2T R AR
18 AR #4,000,0007T °

HEEBER=_ZETN\F=A=+—H=
ik o KB F %8 494,160,000 7T & A fEAX
EBz—REBEES -

R=_ZZFZF/\F=HHAH ' Green Global
Resources Investments Limited
([GGRI] » —FFAEMK Lz ANAT 2
BEMBEAR) BEAR G REREADESE
BRDF([RE] T E ERE © Bt
EHTRBSEEELETBIRE &atél
RRARAFEFRERNZTESRZ ISR
1% 185,000,000 2 #I - R KK =F1E
A #1715 200,0008 H & o

GCRIBEEZ LIEHENE —FREH
%70,000,0007 7t ° GGRIX X 8 #& & 5
RIhZ IREEZRBEMAT (TREE
A B2 BL) 290% &% 10% + K5 BlE 5t
ZIEMEBRNEL ZEMEMKEZ
80% K 20% °
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

37. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)

38.

v)

Vi)

On 25th March 2008, Hainan Venture, an indirect
90% owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a cooperation agreement with the Hainan Partner,
a limited liability company established in the PRC,
whereby Hainan Venture will advance to the Hainan
Partner a deposit of up to HK$53,000,000 in the first
year of the project without any interest or pledge of
security to finance the planting and maintenance of
Jatropha curcas trees.

Hainan Venture and the Hainan Partner have agreed
that (a) for the three year-period commencing in
2008, Hainan Venture will sell Jatropha curcas
saplings from its nursery to the Hainan Partner
for planting by the Hainan Partner in an area of
approximately 1,300,000 Chinese mu in Hainan, the
PRC, and (b) the Hainan Partner will sell all qualified
seeds harvested from the Jatropha curcas trees in
the above land area exclusively to Hainan Venture
for 30 years.

On 26th March 2008, Lao-Agro, an indirect 80%
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a
cooperation agreement with the National Authority
for Science and Technology (“NAST") for the
purposes of establishing three fully equipped
centers to carry out in-depth research and
development of the Jatropha curcas plant for the
production of commercially and environmentally
sustainable bio-energy as an alternative and
renewable energy source.

The cooperation project is for a term of thirty
years. Lao-Agro has agreed to invest a total of
US$3,000,000 in both equipment and cash for the
cooperation project. The profits generated from the
cooperation agreement will be shared 80% and 20%
respectively by Lao-Agro and NAST.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative amounts for the year ended 31st
December 2007 have been reclassified to conform with the
current year's presentation.
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37.

+
o=

v)

Vi)

H#& =18 @)

RZZTZENF=A=1+HB " BEERE
(— R B A2 B A H 0% # 2 i
BAR) BEemEH (—RRPEKIZE
REERE) LA S Bk B
REEZBRBFE A BERZEER
BTN — 2 & % Z53,000,000/8 7T
Wiz (Tat B REARFEMERR)
UAE BhiEfE I AR B R o

BHEEESHEMHYRAE  @QE=-Z
SNEFEA=ZFHHEAN BHEEESEEM
BEEHHEEEBANEE ZMEE &
A8 R R 7E 7 BB B4 491,300,000
MEREN T ERE: Rb)EmEtE
—tFRABERNEEEZEBREERE Lt
THRBzRMEEEERKEZFIEER
BiET o
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